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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2025 (the “Year”).

MARKET OVERVIEW

The apparel retail markets continued to be affected by weak
consumer sentiment that had resulted from the sluggish
economy, which was exacerbated by trade war amid escalating

geopolitical tensions.

In Hong Kong, where the Group derived about 59% of its
revenue, the value of retail sales of wearing apparel dropped by
about 10.6% to approximately HK$37.91 billion in 2024, in
sharp contrast to the about 43.5% growth in 2023 (source: The
Census and Statistics Department of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR”)). The decline was attributable
to the city’s weak economy, gloomy job prospects and the
fundamental changes in the consumer behaviour of both the
locals and tourists. While there has been an increasing trend for
the Hong Kong residents to spend holidays relaxing and
shopping in Mainland China and foreign countries, notably
Japan, Mainland Chinese tourists, who accounted for the
majority of the visitor arrivals in the city, had less buying power
than they used to have and were becoming more interested in
sightseeing than in shopping. The situation was also not helped
by the fact that the total visitor arrivals in Hong Kong in 2024
only bounced back to about 79.59% of the pre-pandemic level
in 2019 (source: Hong Kong Tourism Board quoting the data
from the Immigration Department of the HKSAR). Another
problem was the irrepressibly high rents for shop spaces despite
the decreasing retail sales and more frequent shop closures
during the economic hard times - total retail sales were
decreasing year on year for thirteen consecutive months from
March of 2024 to March of 2025 (source: The Census and
Statistics Department of the HKSAR).
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Chairman’s Statement

The apparel market in Mainland China faced similar difficulties
as the ongoing property sector crisis was still weighing on the
economy, and the situation was worsened by the trade war
waged by the United States on China and many other countries.
This resulted in bleak employment and business prospects, thus
denting the consumer confidence. Growth in the value of retail
of apparel, shoes, headwear and knitted products in the country
decelerated to 0.3% in 2024 from 12.9% in 2023 (source:
National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of China).
However, rents for shop spaces remained high as leading fashion
brands vied for prime locations at the top-ranking shopping

malls in cities.

In addition to coping with the unfavourable macroeconomic
conditions, the fashion apparel companies have also been
adapting themselves to fundamental trends in the industry for
many years, including the emergence of a younger generation of
consumers whose consumption behaviour and preferences are
different from those of the older generations; the younger
consumers attaching less importance to big brand names as
status symbols but more to apparel’s functions and match to
their personal styles; population aging and longer life
expectancy; and the advent of information technologies such as
the internet, electronic commerce and social media. Catering to
the preferences of both the younger generation and the youthful,
energetic middle-aged people with longer life expectancy as
well as making full use of the information technologies to
promote and sell the products are the way forward for the

industry.
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RESULTS

Moiselle mainly engages in retailing women’s fashion apparel to
high-end and upper-middle markets. To adapt to the changes in
the market, it has also been gearing itself more towards the
design and sale of on-trend apparel targeted at the younger
generation of customers while catering to the preferences of the
middle-aged customers. It also conducted promotional sales and
marketing online and at commercial premises in an attempt to

boost sales.

For the Year, the Group recorded an operating loss of
approximately HK$46 million because of the decrease in sales
amid the economic slowdown and the downward pressure
exerted by the persistently high rents for shop spaces on
profitability. The loss of HK$57 million recorded for the Year
was larger than the operating loss due to a considerable decline
in the total value of the Company’s investment properties in a
revaluation in the light of a bleaker prospect for business amid
the economic slowdown in Hong Kong. All of the Group's
operations in various geographical markets recorded decreases
in revenue, resulting in a 25% decline in turnover for the Year.
Revenue from its operations in Hong Kong fell by 27% to
approximately HK$61 million; revenue from its operations in
Mainland China decreased by 20% to approximately HK$25
million; its revenue from Macau dropped by 15% to
approximately HK$10 million, and that from Taiwan decreased

by 35% to approximately HK$7 million.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong accounted for about 59%
of its revenue while those in Mainland China contributed to
about 24%; operations in Macau and Taiwan made up about
10% and 7% respectively. Gross profit margin was 80% for the
Year, compared with the 81% for the previous financial year
ended 31 March 2024 (the “Previous Financial Year”).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

To cope with the volatile business environment and highly
competitive fashion apparel market, the Group developed
business prudently by concentrating its resources and efforts on
building its major house brand MOISELLE, enhanced its
relationships with existing customers and cultivated new ones
through both online and offline marketing campaigns while
pursuing the business strategies that it had already formulated
more than five years ago for adapting to the fundamental

changes in the fashion apparel industry.

During the Year, the Group enhanced its distinctive brand image
by continuing to launch new seasonal fashion products under
the MOISELLE brand with themes and stories that struck a chord
with both the existing and prospective customers, and by
unifying the regularly updated product display and themed
interior decoration at all its stores in its various geographical
markets. For instance, in early September 2024, the Group
launched the MOISELLE brand’s 2024 fall/winter collection
under the theme “Reminiscing the time in Santorini” that
celebrated women’s adventurous spirit and vivacity. It also
introduced to the market the spring collection for 2025 under
the theme of “Traveller: Prismatic Dreams” for its on-trend
fashion line and under the theme of “Classic: Juxtaposition” for
its classic fashion line in February of 2025. Since 2020, the
Group has repositioned its major house brand MOISELLE as a
brand that accentuates the beauty of Asian women'’s silhouette
through two fashion lines, namely the classic and elegant
fashion apparel and the on-trend, unique fashion apparel that
projects a youthful image in response to the two fundamental
changes in the Group’s customer base: the emergence of the
younger generation of consumers, who prefer mid-range,
on-trend fashion apparel of simpler design to the classic one of
elaborate design; and a growing number of youthful, energetic
middle-aged people with longer life expectancy who also like
trendy wear. The Group also enriched the concept of its
repositioning by inventing a theme for marketing its seasonal
collection which was about manifesting the wearers’
personalities and self-awakening in the financial year ended 31
March 2021. The concept is summed up in a slogan “C’est MOI,
MOISELLE” (“EFh2HFF" in Chinese).
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The Group also proactively strengthened the relationships with
existing customers and cultivated new ones, and collected their
feedback by holding fashion shows and handicraft courses. The
customers attended the events at restaurants or the Group's retail

stores, and they could place orders on the spots.

In view of the profound changes in the consumer behaviour of
both the Hong Kong residents and inbound tourists, the Group
realized that it could no longer merely rely on public holidays
for boosting sales so it conducted more short-term promotional
sales throughout the year on commercial premises such as those
at Cathay Pacific City, the Hong Kong International Airport; at
Time Square, Causeway Bay; and at Sogo in The Twins, Kai Tak.
It also participated in shopping malls’ promotional campaigns

and rewards point redemption programmes.

To strengthen its business presence in its various geographical
markets, the Group kept on rationalizing its retail networks there
and maintaining them to an optimal minimum. In Mainland
China, it basically maintained one store in each of the cities
where it operated, and rented shop spaces on short leases which
offered the Group more flexibility in adjusting the scale of its
store network. In Hong Kong, the Group pursued the strategy of
expanding its retail network at prime locations with good
prospect at reasonable rents. It aimed to build up its stores in the
city by improving their performance. It also enhanced the
shopping experience at its stores by incorporating such elements
as environmental awareness, quality lifestyle and art into the
interior decoration. To mitigate the pressure of high rents in
Hong Kong, the Group sought to negotiate with the landlords for
lower rents for shop spaces. In the first half of the Year, only a
small number of the landlords were willing to slightly reduce the
rents; in the second half of the Year, they had yet to give any

positive responses.
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To capitalize on the popularity of electronic commerce and fan
economy, the Group leverages social media and e-commerce
platforms as cost-effective means to market and sell its products.
During the Year, the Group proactively sought to expand its
quality customer base by marketing its products on RedNote, an
online social media focused on fashionable and lifestyle trends
and products. It also sponsored some artistes who modelled
MOISELLE's products on social media. The Group is also running
an electronic commerce business which serves as a means of
boosting sales, conducting marketing campaigns, collecting
customer feedback and fostering customer relationships. Its
electronic commerce business consists of two online platforms
respectively for the marketing and sales of the MOISELLE
products for its Hong Kong operations and for the retailing of its
diffusion lines under such brands as m.d.m.s., GERMAIN and
LANCASTER for its Hong Kong-based concept store, M
CONZEPT. It also continued to conduct short-term cooperation
with an online shopping website operator, OnTheList, which
specializes in flash sales to boost sales during the Year. In
Mainland China, the Group continued to develop its electronic
commerce business through its separate alliances with four local
electronic commerce website operators, namely CloudHappy
Mall (“ZBE"” in Chinese), VIP.com which specializes in
online discount sales and is operated by Vipshop (“Mf&” in
Chinese), Tmall and JD.com, Inc. (“ZREREB” in Chinese). Such
online platforms for sales and marketing can be combined with
the Group’s mobile phone-enabled application to build up a

customer base and carry out precision marketing.
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OUTLOOK

Weak economy and trade war have cast uncertainty over the
prospect of the fashion apparel market. The business
environment will remain difficult. Therefore, the Group will
maintain its prudent approach to business development and use
its resources efficiently while trying to strengthen its existing

customer base and to reach out to more prospective customers.

The Group will step up its efforts to leverage social media to
conduct marketing campaigns, keeping existing and prospective
customers interested in its latest stylish products through
engrossing themes and stories. It will also continue to sponsor
some artistes who will model MOISELLE’s products on social
media. Such moves will allow the Group to tap into the

popularity of fan economy and electronic commerce.

At its retail stores, the Group will keep on enhancing its
distinctive brand image by updating product display and interior
decoration at all its retail outlets in various geographical markets
regularly in a uniform manner according to the themes of its
latest products. Such online and offline efforts will enable the

Group to enhance customer loyalty and attract new customers.

Furthermore, it will also seek to further enhance its operational
efficiency by raising the level of automation of apparel

processing.

All these measures, together with the Group’s business strategies
that it had already set more than five years ago for coping with
the fundamental changes in the fashion apparel industry, are
aimed at enhancing its competitive strength and adaptability to
the changes in the market. The Group will monitor closely the
economic conditions and fashion trends in the markets and may

adjust the above plans accordingly.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2025
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Targeting the markets for luxurious and mid-range apparel, the
Group operates such house brands as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s. and
CGERMAIN, while engaging in distributorship for international
brand LANCASTER. Each of the brands has its own distinctive
consumer base and is being developed separately by the
Group’s dedicated and talented designer teams for house brands.
The Group retails its products under the various brands at stores
in prime locations. As at 31 March 2025, the Group had 31
stores and counters in Hong Kong, first- and second-tier cities of
Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan, compared to 32 stores as
at 31 March 2024. It closed some underperforming stores but
also opened some stores in places with good prospect to

rationalize its network of retail outlets.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS BY LOCATION

Operations in Hong Kong

Revenue from the Group’s operations in Hong Kong decreased
by 27% to HK$61,005,000 for the Year as the city’s apparel
market was hit hard by the economic doldrums and profound
changes in the consumer behaviour of both the locals and
inbound tourists — the growing trend for Hong Kong residents to
spend holidays in Mainland China or overseas for relaxation and
consumption on the one hand, and Mainland Chinese tourists
who have less buying power than they used to have and whose
interest shifts more to sightseeing from shopping on the other
hand.

Having realized that it could no longer merely rely on public
holidays for boosting sales, the Group participated in more
short-term promotional sales throughout the year on commercial
premises such as those at Cathay Pacific City, the Hong Kong
International Airport; at Time Square, Causeway Bay; and at
Sogo in The Twins, Kai Tak. It also participated in shopping
malls’ promotional campaigns and reward points redemption

programmes.
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Another problem that has long plagued the retail sector in the
city is the irrepressibly high rents for shop spaces despite the
decreasing retail sales and more frequent shop closures during
the economic hard times. Rents of shop spaces at prime
locations, especially the high-end shopping malls in the city,
stabilized at high levels during the Year. The Group tried to
negotiate with the landlords for lower rents but did not get many

positive responses.

To cope with the problem, the Group has been rationalizing its
store network and actively developing its electronic commerce
business for the purposes of boosting sales and conducting

marketing campaigns.

To strengthen its business presence in Hong Kong, the Group
had been prudently seeking for shop spaces with good prospect
at reasonable rents. It also kept its store network to an optimal
minimum by maintaining its presence mainly at high-end
shopping malls in prime locations. For instance, it relocated its
shop at Cityplaza in Taikoo Shing, and re-opened it in
September 2024.

To capitalize on the popularity of electronic commerce and fan
economy, the Group leverages social media and e-commerce
platforms as cost-effective means to market and sell its products.
During the Year, the Group proactively sought to expand its
quality customer base by marketing its products on RedNote, an
online social media focused on fashionable and lifestyle trends
and products. It also sponsored some artistes who modelled
MOISELLE's products on social media. The Group is also running
two online platforms respectively for the marketing and sales of
the MOISELLE products for its Hong Kong operations and for the
retailing of its diffusion lines under such brands as m.d.m.s.,
GERMAIN and LANCASTER for its Hong Kong-based concept
store, M CONZEPT. The online shopping platforms not only
allowed the Group to sell out-of-season products at discounts as
well as the products specifically designed for online sales, but
also enabled it to proactively conduct promotional campaigns

and to maintain customer relationships, namely by notifying its
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customer club members of its latest offerings and promotional
activities through their mobile phones. It also continued to
conduct short-term cooperation with an online shopping website
operator, OnThelList, which specializes in flash sales to boost

sales during the Year.

As part of its sales and marketing efforts, the Group also hosted
fashion shows or other marketing campaigns at its retail stores as
well as at certain restaurants to strengthen its relationships with
existing customers, especially the VIP members of the Group’s

customer club, and attract new ones.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group operated 7 MOISELLE,
2 m.d.m.s., 2 LANCASTER and 2 M CONZEPT retail stores as
well as one outlet in the city (As at 31 March 2024, the Group
operated 6 MOISELLE, 2 m.d.m.s., 2 LANCASTER and
2 M CONZEPT retail stores as well as one outlet).

Operations in Mainland China

Revenue from the Group’s operations in Mainland China
dropped by 20% to HK$25,012,000 during the Year, at a faster
pace than the year-on-year decrease of 10% in the first half of
the Year. It was because the sluggish economy, high interest
rate, ongoing property sector crisis, bleak employment and
business prospects and escalating US-China trade war took their
toll on the consumer confidence. Moreover, the irrepressibly
high rents for certain shop spaces which resulted from leading
fashion brands’ competition for prime locations also contributed
to the decrease. The Group closed certain retail outlets at
high-rent shop spaces, namely one in Shanghai, one in
Wenzhou and one in Nanjing during the Year. However, it also
opened two new stores in Shenzhen and one new store in
Wenzhou during the Year. The moves were in line with the
Group’s store network rationalization drive to cope with the
country’s highly competitive fashion apparel market and volatile,
complicated business environment. The Group pursued the
strategy of keeping its store network to an optimal minimum by
basically maintaining one store in each of the Mainland Chinese

cities where it operates.
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To raise its brand awareness, the Group held fashion shows at its
stores in the country and sponsored some artistes who modelled
MOISELLE's products on social media.

To capitalize on the growing trend of electronic commerce in
Mainland China, the Group continued to develop its electronic
commerce business through its separate alliances with four local
electronic commerce website operators, namely CloudHappy

Mall, Vipshop, Tmall and JD.com, Inc.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group operated 11 MOISELLE retail
stores in the country (As at 31 March 2024: 12 MOISELLE retail

stores).

Operations in Macau

For the Year, turnover at the Group’s operations in Macau fell by
15% to HK$9,689,000 because its business was affected by the
decreased buying power of the Mainland Chinese tourists as
well as the relocation of its LANCASTER retail store at The
Venetian Macao, a hotel and casino resort in the city. As at 31
March 2025, the Group operated three stores in the city, namely
one MOISELLE and one LANCASTER retail stores at The Venetian
Macao, and one MOISELLE retail store at The Parisian Macao (As
at 31 March 2024, the Group operated three stores in the city,
namely one MOISELLE and one LANCASTER retail stores at The
Venetian Macao, and one MOISELLE retail store at The Parisian

Macao).

Operations in Taiwan

Revenue from the Group’s operations in Taiwan dropped by
35% to approximately HK$7,016,000, which accounted for
about 7% of the Group’s turnover for the Year. The decrease
was due to the closure of a store and the curtailing of both
marketing campaigns and investment in brand building. The
Group operated 3 MOISELLE retail stores there as at 31 March
2025 (As at 31 March 2024: 3 MOISELLE and one LANCASTER

retail stores).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover decreased by approximately 25% to
approximately HK$102,722,000 (2024: HK$137,311,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2025 as compared with 2024. The
revenue earned from Hong Kong segment decreased by
approximately 27% to approximately HK$61,005,000 (2024:
HK$83,913,000). The sluggish local economy with conservative
consumer sentiment over the retail market had contributed to
decrease in revenue of the segment. The segment contributed to
59% (2024: 61%) of the Group's total revenue.

The revenue of the segment outside Hong Kong decreased by
approximately 22% to approximately HK$41,717,000 (2024:
HK$53,398,000) during the year ended 31 March 2025 mainly
due to deteriorated performance in the Mainland China and
Taiwan with challenges encountered in newly established
locations of retail stores. The segment contribution increased to
41% (2024: 39%) as a result.

During the year, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 80.1%, as compared to 80.5% of the previous
year. Gross profit margin has maintained with less reliance on
businesses from discounted sales and fewer promotion activities
during the financial year. Operating expenses for the year ended
31 March 2025 totalled approximately HK$133,443,000,
compared to approximately HK$141,421,000 for 2024,
decreased by approximately 6%. Although the management had
continued to conduct various measures in stringent cost
management to counteract high operating expenses, mainly staff
costs and rental expenses, the Group suffered an operating loss
of HK$45,811,000 (2024: HK$29,286,000).

The loss attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2025 was approximately HK$56,546,000
(2024: HK$48,100,000), increased in line with the increase in
operating loss with lower impact from the loss on changes in fair

value of investment properties.
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Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group financed its
operations with internally generated cash flows and bank
borrowings. The Group adopts a prudent financial policy such
that it can meet the financial obligations when they fall due and
maintain a sufficient operating fund for the development of the
Group’s business. At the end of the financial year, the Group’s
aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$5 million (2024: HK$24 million). Cash and
bank deposits were held mainly in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group has foreign operations and certain of its
net assets are exposed to the risk of foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations. The management regularly monitors the foreign
currency exchange risk of the Group and may consider hedging

activities when necessary.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group was granted aggregate
composite banking facilities of approximately HK$86 million
(2024: HK$73 million) by various commercial banks. Within the
overall banking facilities, the Group secured bank borrowings of
HK$67 million (2024: HK$51 million) at operating subsidiary
level financing its working capital as at 31 March 2025. The
Group was also benefited from the utilisation of banking
facilities HK$2 million (2024: HK$6 million) such as bank
guarantee as at 31 March 2025.

The Group ran into net current liabilities of HK$67 million as at
the year end (2024: HK$24 million), with current assets being
less than current liabilities. As at 31 March 2025, the gearing
ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and lease liabilities divided
by shareholders’ equity) was approximately 31.1% (2024:
23.5%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2025, land and buildings held for own use and
investment properties with a carrying value of approximately
HK$116 million (31 March 2024: HK$111 million) were pledged

to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2025, the Group employed 271 (2024: 302)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical

insurance cover and training programmes.

COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS’ INTERESTS, SOCIETY’S
WELL-BEING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to ensuring the rights and interests of its
stakeholders (including its shareholders, employees and
customers) and the well-being of society at large while
complying with all the laws and regulations of the places where
it has operations, including Hong Kong, Mainland China,

Taiwan and Macau.

In addition to its business objective of maximizing returns to
shareholders, the Group also tries its best to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility. For instance, the Group ensures protection
of both environment and consumers against hazardous
substances throughout the process of conducting its business,
from raw material procurement, production to retail. The Group
also has taken measures to ensure that its factory in Longhua,
Shenzhen, complies with the local environmental regulations on
industrial emissions and effluents. The factory is only
responsible for sewing and is not engaged in any dyeing of

fabrics.

The Group believes in consumers’ entitlement to quality and
safe products. To attain this goal, the Group maintains
well-established relationships with trustworthy raw material
suppliers and processing factories, and delivers a sample of each
model of its products to Shenzhen Academy of Metrology and
Quality Inspection for inspection. Besides, the Group also
requires all business partners, raw material suppliers and
production vendors to fulfill all relevant legal and regulatory

requirements on product safety.
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The Group now has over thirty suppliers and has business
relationship of more than a decade on average with each of
them. Such well-established business relationships with the
suppliers are attributable to the Group’s success in building their

trust in it with integrity and by honouring the contracts.

The Group has established a customer loyalty program in order
to enhance customer satisfaction as well as to encourage
repeated purchase. Under the membership program, the VIP
customers can enjoy special discounts and regular activities. It
also manages and maintains good customer relations through
customer service hotlines, after-sales supports as well as bespoke

service and communication with members via mails and emails.

Another group of stakeholders who are also key to the Group’s
success are its employees. The Group offers its staff reasonable
remuneration and benefits and protect their rights according to
the labour laws of the places where it has operations. For
instance, it complies with the relevant laws and regulations on
the employees’ provident fund pension scheme, employment
insurance and safety at work. It also provides training for them
that benefit the development of both their careers and the

Group's business.

The Group aims to accumulate resources for business and use
them effectively to ensure sustainable development. For
instance, it has been enhancing the brand equity of its house
brands and that of the European brand for which it is a
distributor by actively exploring new markets. It has also
allocated resources for the design, research and development of
products and the training of staff. The move was aimed at
manufacturing products of high quality and refreshing designs
with new and improved materials. It also serves to raise the
efficiency of the retail operations. The Group also tries its best to
protect its intellectual property rights and patents and respects

other parties’ intellectual property rights.

All these initiatives and measures can contribute to the

sustainability of the Group’s business.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 66, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 48
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading.
Mr. Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hongkong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
November 2001 and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in
December 2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding
Chinese Award by the World Chinese Business Investment
Foundation. He was also awarded 2004 Associateship by The
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in
January 2004. He is a senior fellow of Social Enterprise Research
Academy. Mr. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council, an honorary president of the island
regional association of the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association
and the vice-chairman of HK Guangxi Chamber of Commerce.
He is the husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father
of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 66, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is the Group’s
vice-chairman. She is responsible for the Group’s merchandising
management and retail operations management. She has over 48
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. She was
awarded Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur Excellence
Award in November 2016 and was awarded GBA Outstanding
Women Entrepreneur Award in November 2024. She is a
member of Zonta Club of New Territories, an honorary president
and council member of Hong Kong Federation of Women, a
co-chairman of HK Tianjin Women’s Federation, a member of
HKFW Women Entrepreneurs Committee, a delegate of
All-China Women’s Federation, Zhuhai, and an honorary
president of All-China Women’s Federation Hong Kong
Delegates Association Limited and of the island regional
association of the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association. Ms. Tsui
is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and is the
mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 47, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of
the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother
of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 65, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 37
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 36 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as
China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also
appointed as notary public in December 2009. She is a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives

Association.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 64, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the CEO of Archiledture Limited. He has 34 years’
experience in international marketing and senior management
role in both the semiconductor and solid-state lighting
industries. Mr. Chu graduated from the University of Essex with
a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from the University of

Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen (alias name: LEE Shuk Ying,
Helen), aged 71, is an independent non-executive director
appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is currently the
director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has over 30 years’
experience in management consulting and systems
implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce from Queen’s University in Canada. She is a member
of the board of directors, the finance committee and the
information technology committee of Heep Hong Society, and is
the president of, and the chairman of the finance and
administration committee and the primary and community
health committee of, Hong Kong YWCA.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Dr. Ng Lai Man Carmen, aged 60, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in April 2023. Dr. Ng has over
30 years of experience in professional accounting, corporate
finance and asset management service in Mainland China, Hong

Kong, Southeast Asia, Europe, Canada and the United States.

Dr. Ng is a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong
and is currently a director of Cosmos CPA Limited, an audit and
advisory firm in Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Dr. Ng received her Doctor degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Juris Doctor degree
in Law from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Master of
Laws in Corporate and Financial Laws from The University of
Hong Kong, Master of Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong, Master of Professional Accounting
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as well as Master of
Science in Global Finance jointly offered by Leonard N. Stern
School of Business of New York University and School of

Business of The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-executive director of
eSun Holdings Limited (stock code: 571) and Global
International Credit Group Limited (stock code: 1669), both
being companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 37, is the deputy chief executive
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s overall operations and
design and development functions. In addition, he is also
responsible for the Group’s brand building, marketing and
interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a bachelor of arts
degree in fashion management (fashion retail) from University of
the Arts London of the United Kingdom. He is a member of
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association. He is the son of
Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 55, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 30 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from Hong Kong Metropolitan University and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (“HKCGI”) and the Chartered Governance Institute of
the United Kingdom, a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom and a holder

of the practitioner’s endorsement of HKCGI.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) is committed to meeting statutory and
regulatory requirements and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provision C.2.1 as below, the
company has complied with the code provisions listed in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2025.

Code Provision C.2.1

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the company. The company will however keep this

matter under review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2025.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to provide leadership and control,
formulate the group’s business strategies, assess and address
risks in achieving the group’s objectives and uphold corporate
governance functions, including the aspects of environmental,
social and governance reporting. The Board has established the
group’s purposes and values and satisfied that these are aligned
with the desired culture. Corporate values are reinforced across
the group which stress on conducting all kinds of businesses in
lawful, ethical and responsible manners. Operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The Board comprises seven directors, three of which are
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman),
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and Mr. Chan Sze Chun, and four are
independent non-executive directors, namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen,
and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, five board meetings
were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
Code Provision C.2.7 of the CG Code which states that the
Chairman should hold meeting with the independent
non-executive directors without the other directors of the

company present. The attendance of each director is set out as

follows:

Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen 4/5
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During the year ended 31 March 2025, one general meeting, the

annual general meeting, of the company was held. The

attendance of each director is set out as follows:

HFE AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 171
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1”71
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 171
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1”71
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 171
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 1”71
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen 1/

The relationship among members of the Board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.
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Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

Mr. Chan Sze Chun
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Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

provided of each director are set out as follows:

PRz B

Training received and date

WMEBCANESRRAZARDLE
BENER-_T-HFRK

—ZE-mNE+-At+AR

Corporate Reassessments of 2025 Strategies
amid Geopolitical and Trade Tensions
(ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ%i%%ﬁ
ZEHFERE)

15 November 2024

MEBAMESBRRRAZAREE
ENER-_S-_HFERK

—E-OmNE+-A+AR

Corporate Reassessments of 2025 Strategies
amid Geopolitical and Trade Tensions
(HEBANEZRRADAREEENER
ZEZHFERK)

15 November 2024

EEPHAA
—E-HRF=ZA+ZH

Finance for Directors
12 March 2025

“ECHFERRRERE
—ZE-HF¥-A=tZ=H
Global Investment Outlook 2025
23 January 2025

IHRATHESHE-SERETHER

—E-HF-ATMHA

Directors’ Duties under the Listing Rules
— Refresher And Recent Developments

14 January 2025
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Training provider

ERUBERGE

The Hong Kong Association
of Financial Advisors
Limited

BERMBEEGE

The Hong Kong Association
of Financial Advisors
Limited

BRESEE

The Hong Kong Institute of

Directors

EREEES

The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors

RENE

BHBA

ol

The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute

The directors have provided records of the training they received

during the year to the company. The details of training records

Fir 75 B ]

Time spent

1.5/NBF

1.5 hours

1.5/ BF

1.5 hours

2/NBE

2 hours

2B

2 hours

1.5/NBF

1.5 hours
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Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen had
provided confirmation on their fulfillment of the mandatory
continuing professional development requirements of The Law
Society of Hong Kong and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants respectively during the year ended 31 March
2025.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the
year ended 31 March 2025 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there was no nomination

committee meeting being held.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.
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BOARD DIVERSITY
The company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b.  Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide

different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c.  Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its
implementation and to review the mechanism and the progress

towards achieving the objectives on annual basis.

The headcount by gender of the members of the senior

management at 31 March 2025 is set out below:

AE

Number of person

Male 1

Female 1

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2025 has
disclosed and explained information on the gender ratio in the

overall workforce of the group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one

executive director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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During the year ended 31 March 2025, three remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

H R &%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 3/3

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has approved the terms of
executive directors’ service agreements and of non-executive

directors’ appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.
The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined

based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out below:

AE
HK$ Number of person
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the group’s

independent auditor is analysed as follows:

B
HK$
BT RIS Audit services 750,000
FETRE Non-audit services 240,000
990,000

EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

ARAMBETRAUEI2IRRLEREZES  EEEK
REEASEHBERRBREAREREERARPEZES
B -BERZEETMARRZNUBIFHTESMAR 25
AREELL(ER) REARERERRLL  XHE
EEER-
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2025, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

H AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of risk management and internal control systems
which are essential for effective and efficient operations of the
group and are fundamental in the thorough and regular
evaluation of the nature and extent of the risks to which the
group is exposed. These systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal control is defined
as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the achievement of objectives in relation to the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations
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For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the group, focusing on three major business cycles of
the group, under COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) framework. The Board had been
satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of these systems on
monitoring and evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the
directors were dedicated to implement various initiatives to
further enhance the existing risk management and internal
control systems alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.

During the year, the group has maintained an internal audit
function with internal resources and engaged external
consultants to assist the management in order to identify,

evaluate and manage significant risks of the group.

During the year, the internal audit function had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions (details of which had been
disclosed in the company’s announcement of 31 August 2023),
and had included the relevant findings and recommendations in

its annual review report and submitted to the Board.

The group has established whistleblowing policies and systems
with designated committee (audit committee) for employees,
customers and suppliers to raise concerns in confidence and
anonymity. The group has also established policies and systems
promoting anti-corruption laws and regulations, as well as

provision of relevant training to its workforce.

The group complies with the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission
in view of fulfilling its obligations to disclose inside information

under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Annual Report 2025 4 JE 4 #t



EERRKRBEZER
ARBRESHE REACRBERREABELAAZFEEUBR
i o

BY%BEER
ARBDBIRBAARERGEUBBRR 2 EREMERR
ZERHCHNES I Z EZBYURBMBRESE -

IR B BR

ESECRIN-EREEE Bt REEERREE -
RRRARRERACRERBUBRNEEEES RRRE
RER  UBEBAFRRSERQT N2 IRKAREH
REZEE -

ESeRRBARRCERMAIRMEEREERERMM
ARARRERK DK E °

DREAME

ARBZRRARERBEERRESTARFNELERE
REEEEHNENABREXRRURRERREHRR
EXBESENTAREERFEA -FARAZRARERY
But HAFKEEBES MEFSEHRIF -FL
AfEESYTESARAMENBRNRYE  UREES
ERERNEFUARFAEERES - RAURBRGISEET

Annual Report 2025 #F B 4F #t

SR IR A
Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

which give a true and fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The statement of the independent auditor of the company
regarding their responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s report

on pages 51 to 61.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopts a dividend policy under which when
considering declaration of dividends, the company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves in order to meet its working
capital and future growth requirements, and shall preserve its
shareholders’ value by allowing shareholders to participate in

the company’s profit distribution.

The Board shall declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the company in compliance with the articles of
association of the company and all applicable regulatory

framework.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the company plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board, facilitating induction and professional
development of the Board members and advising on governance.
The company secretary of the company is Ms. Pang Lin, who is
a full-time employee of the group and reports to the Board. All
directors of the company have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that Board policies and
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are

followed.
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Ms. Pang was appointed as the company secretary of the
company in accordance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. Her
academic and professional qualifications and relevant
experience are disclosed in the directors and senior management

profiles.

Ms. Pang has provided to the company the proof that she has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and has taken no
less than fifteen hours of relevant professional training during the
year ended 31 March 2025.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND COMMUNICATION

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.

If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the

company secretary of the company.
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In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the

proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to

be convened.
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The directors of Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the
company”) presented its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company and its

subsidiaries (the “group”) for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The company is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman lIslands and has its registered office and principal place
of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F,
Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong

respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are design, manufacture, retail
and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in

note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the group during the year, a
discussion on the group’s future business development and an
analysis of the group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 11 and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 12 to 19 of this annual report.
A review of the environmental, social and governance
performance of the group is provided in the Environmental,

Social and Governance Report 2025.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For principal risks and uncertainties, the directors are aware that
the group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, including those
specific to the group and those having generic impacts. The
management closely monitors the business environment in
which the group operates in order to have opportunities and
threats the group faces identified, reported, monitored and
managed on a continuous basis. Related discussion on certain
risks and uncertainties is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 11 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 12 to 19 of this annual report and notes 27 and 28 to
the consolidated financial statements. Concerning the risks
related to environmental, social and governance aspects of the
group’s businesses, related discussion is provided in the

Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2025.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the

group’s total revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the group’s purchases attributable

to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:
FRERBESHEIL
Percentage of the group’s
purchases total
The largest supplier 28%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 49%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
179 and 180.

DIVIDEND

The board did not declare the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 September 2024 (2023: Nil). The
directors do not declare the payment of a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$nil (2024: HK$30,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no movements

during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its
Mainland China employees. The group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated based
on certain prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its Mainland China employees. The group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with such plans beyond the annual contributions

described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of

Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the employees’
payroll to the CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
CPF. The subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its

contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen and
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with article 87 of the company’s
articles of association and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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EERIETBRABRESF 2R DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

RIZE_RAFE=A=+—H ARQXFAZEERFETHAE As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of the
RAARREEBE LB (EXZRRSRBEMGRL (TEFR directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
BEGRG D EXVED) 2R 7 - HERORESH  #EX underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
NARBESRBEROIEI 2R 2R EFE 2B LM associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
i RARB(EBHEXZHEBRLA ([HADE Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
SEMRADTETRAUDFFRLETARNESTETESRK register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
SHZREFR ((REFR D NERQATARBIFzERR as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
HKEWMT Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

REROZERES Eafidaott
Beneficial Approximate EEME
EEnE interest percentage Nature of
Name of director in shares of interests interest
PRI K& 193,918,000 67.35% NGV
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Corporate/Family
2,784,000 0.97% HE®ESR
Jointly held
2,100,000 0.73% Edi
Family
2,100,000 0.73% @ A
Personal
(HizE(1)23))
(Notes (1) — (3))
BBz 193,918,000 67.35% UNGCIPE-i 3
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Corporate/Family
2,784,000 0.97% HE®ESE
Jointly held
2,100,000 0.73% Edi
Family
2,100,000 0.73% A
Personal
(HizE(1)23))
(Notes (1) — (3))
REELLE 900,000 0.31% B\A
Mr. Chan Sze Chun Personal
BERELZ LT 28,000 0.01% (EPN
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Personal
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) as to 46.7% and 46.7%
respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be
deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by Super Result
as corporate interest.

3,918,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments
Limited (“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially
owned by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively.
Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested
in the 3,918,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2) 2,784,000 shares are jointly held by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as
jointly held interests.

(3) Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain director also has beneficial interest
in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting or to participate in any distribution or winding

up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2025, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2025 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2025, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

BRAEEE

ERTROZBNEI L

HRROEH Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

BtEE © Super ResultZ R A TIHREERBKLZ T D FIBEHES
46.7%K46.7% °

BREMER EXEEREIBTRAERE S 2BE |-
FBARAEERETEZTHAE 2EEN  BEARFR
BEZRPERAEBMzZAEFE 2 LMATRRE -
RZZBZAF=ZA=+—0 UEEMALRERIFTRE
HEERDPEARESIAR
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190,000,000 65.99% (#1&t) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 46.7% and 46.7% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2025.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 [ 45 [ 2 #

45

p—\



R

Directors’ Report

EERXRS  RESEHNzER

RERIAFEEMEE  BAQF - HERAF  WE
RAREDRMBLRAER-—FTMALZ2EMNEERS « &
HFRENT AR PNESHERFEMNEAES -

KEREXS

RAFE  AEEAAAABEEAL (EERLEHHRAA
UTRERLZHMBRARFAZBEABERS - ABRE
THRABUAZZRERERAFHRARKE :

RZZBZ=ZFNA=+—B ' ARAZ2EMNBRARE
*’“‘*?tt?éﬁﬁﬁﬁi(F??i&ﬂi;‘*J)EﬁiWﬂEﬂHﬁBE@ﬂ(FFS‘c
FENATVERMERBERR ((ZHE])  RE-Z==
FNAZ-Z-_AF=ZAIt BEHBEOBEHERBEE
BERZE -ZHBRE_ZE_ZFUFTE-_ZT=-_KEFE
F=F BRENZFE -RF FEREF BE-Z-N
F ZECRERZEZAFE=ZA=+-HLEEHREEZ
FEE RS A A8,000,000%& T~ 9,600,000/ T K
9,600,000 T - RAFE ZMBET ZXZEAENAR
167,000 JT °

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % ¥ B B 4 [ A R 2 5]

TRs

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the
company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the group had the following transactions and
arrangements with connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the company which constituted continuing connected
transactions for the company and are required to be reported in
this annual report in compliance with the disclosure

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

On 31 August 2023, Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited (“Boo
Gie Garment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company,
entered into a goods supply and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Nice Power Asia Limited (“Nice Power”) to
regulate the supply and sales of menswear and ladieswear by
Boo Gie Garment to Nice Power from April 2023 to end of
March 2026. The Agreement covered three years each
containing the seasons of fall, winter, spring and summer from
fall 2023 to summer 2026, with annual cap set at
HK$8,000,000, HK$9,600,000 and HK$9,600,000 for financial
years ending 31 March 2024, 2025 and 2026 respectively.
During the year, the total transaction amount under the

Agreement was approximately HK$167,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The pricing policies are set at fixed unit price, the same as in
normal commercial practices. The goods were charged at FOB
prices with terms mutually agreed by both parties based on
prices of goods of similar specifications and natures supplied to
independent customers. The FOB prices are determined based
on ex-factory prices for each style with profit margin of 15% to
73% depending on the order quantity. Basic profit margin of
15% is charged for sourcing of exquisite raw materials and
accessories and merchandising services provided. Additional
profit margin is charged when order is lower than minimum
order quantity of 50 pieces, at surcharge of 15% for order
quantity from 20 to 49 pieces and of 50% for order quantity
from 1 to 19 pieces respectively. Minimum order quantity can
otherwise fluctuate depending on availability of fabric and other

accessory materials and will be agreed by both parties.

Nice Power was 20% owned by the group, 40% owned by
Mr. Chan Pak Hei, a senior management of the group, and 40%
owned by an independent third party. Mr. Chan Pak Hei is the
son of Mr. Chan, chairman and executive director of the
company and Ms. Tsui, an executive director of the company,
and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun, an executive director
of the company. Nice Power is considered to be a connected
person of the company, and the transactions between Boo Gie
Garment and Nice Power under the Agreement constitute

continuing connected transactions of the company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent
non-executive directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that they were entered

into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. in accordance with the Agreement on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

company as a whole.

In addition, in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
the group has engaged its auditors to report on the group’s
continuing connected transactions. The auditors of the group
have issued a letter to the Board confirming that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the

above continuing connected transactions:

1. have not been approved by the Board;

2. were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the group in relation to the provision of
goods or services by the group;

3. have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

4. have exceeded the annual cap.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions of the group for the year
ended 31 March 2025 are disclosed in note 30(a) to the
consolidated financial statements. Save for the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above, during the year under
review, none of the related party transactions constituted a
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
subject to independent shareholders’ approval, annual review
and all disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

On 28 May 2020, the group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a facility letter with an existing bank for
a revised banking facility up to an aggregate amount of
HK$65,000,000. In June 2022, the facility amount was further
revised to HK$55,000,000. Pursuant to the terms of the facility
letter, the group undertakes with the bank that the directors,
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui, shall remain to be the directors and the

largest shareholder of the company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the company is currently in force and was in force

throughout the year.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution of the
re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of
the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO APPENDIX D2 PARAGRAPH 30
OF THE LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu resigned as auditors of the company and Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited was appointed as auditors of the company to

fill the casual vacancy.

By Order of the Board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 62 to 176, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting

policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.
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BRFEBREEERARSRRZE L ABEMRE () INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(RESHEZMAT ZERA ) (Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
ERNER BASIS FOR OPINION
BRMERBEEESTMASEAN(EEBENERETE We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
e BRMEZZERTRENESEE EARSE [ H Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
%E‘f%Aﬁjﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁk}féﬂ’ﬂf&JﬁB’\EFf/F?E—fFF‘!ﬁj?il:l ° 1R responsibilities under those standards are further described in
BEBEAMASHEMN(EXESHMBETA) (UATH the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
BIFAD  BMBYRN BEEEH IEE',JE?‘_I—? Bl g E Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
thEHEBEEEME c HMER  KMAESNETRFRE of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
BEMARMNEFTZEREHER - for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HRETER KEY AUDIT MATTERS

ERBFTBERBBERMNERAE AU EPEERE Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
RN ETRAEENEEH SLEEEEERMES judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
ERGAUBRRRHARRKETREN - RMTSY consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
ELUEHRHEBNER - matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment

We identified the impairment of right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment in the Group’s retail
operations as a key audit matter due to inherent uncertainty
pertaining to the assumptions required in determining the
future discounted cash flow forecasts of each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) being the individual retail
stores. The process also requires significant degree of
management judgement and estimation in determining the
appropriate level of provision.

Management judgement is required to identify those CGUs
requiring provision for or reversal of impairment in the
current year, while estimation is required to assess the
recoverable amounts of each CGU.

Impairment losses on right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment for the amount of HK$3,385,000 and
HK$87,000, respectively, were recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2025. As at 31 March 2025, the carrying
amounts of the right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment were HK$22,392,000 and HK$301,899,000,
respectively.

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment in the Group’s retail
operations included:

e Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s control and
assessment process in identifying the indicators of
potential impairment and estimating the recoverable
amount of each CGU by considering the level of
inherent risk of estimation uncertainty and susceptibility
to management bias;

e Evaluating the appropriateness in management’s
identification of CGUs, the allocation of assets to each
CGU identified and the impairment assessment
methodology adopted by management;

e Comparing the most significant inputs used in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue and related future expenses,
with the historical performance of these retail stores and
the budgets and forecasts approved by the directors of
the Company, taking into account recent developments
in the retail sector and the future operating plans for the
Group;

e  Evaluating the reasonableness of the discount rates
applied in the cash flow forecasts;

e  Evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by the
management on the key inputs used to evaluate the
extent to which changes in key inputs would impact the
estimated future cash flows; and

e Testing the mathematical accuracy of provision for

impairment made by management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings held for own use

We identified the valuation of investment properties and land
and buildings held for own use as a key audit matter because
the valuations of these properties require the exercise of

significant judgement and estimation.

The fair values of the investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use were assessed by the directors
based on valuations prepared by an independent firm of
qualified professional property valuers. The key estimates and
assumptions adopted in the valuation by the external property
valuer included unobservable inputs used such as
capitalisation rate and the selection of comparable market

transactions.

The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use were valued at HK$129,498,000 and
HK$297,594,000 as at 31 March 2025, respectively.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment

properties and land and buildings held for own use included:

e Obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the external property valuer engaged by the Group
and on which the directors’ assessment of the fair values
of investment properties and land and buildings held for

own use was based;

e Assessing the external property valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued

and considering their objectivity;

e Discussing with the external property valuer, to
understand the valuation methodology applied and the
key estimates and assumptions adopted in their
valuations and assess their reasonableness and the

consistency with industry norms; and

e Comparing the significant unobservable inputs and
comparable market transactions adopted by the external
property valuer with available market data, on a sample

basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Annual Report 2025 4 4 4 Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 ¥ £ [ 2 # 59

._-FH‘ - ‘



60

T 7 A il R o
Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Li Man Chun Jesse.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2025

Li Man Chun Jesse

Practising certificate number P08302
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

—E-HE —EME
2025 2024
Y = THERT FTHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
W Revenue 5 102,722 137,311
SHE AR Cost of sales (20,430) (26,827)
ER Gross profit 82,292 110,484
Hib A Other income 3,314 6,142
Hibm Rk &8 Other gains and losses 7 2,026 (4,491)
DEREERX Distribution and selling expenses (78,930) (84,048)
THREEMEKERX Administrative and other operating expenses (54,513) (57,373)
REEE Loss from operations (45,811) (29,286)
REVERAREBERBZER Loss on changes in fair value of investment
properties 14 (8,352) (16,136)
il & B AR Finance costs 9 (5,697) (4,416)
R ATE B Loss before taxation (59,860) (49,838)
FriSBiK % Income tax credit 8 3,307 1,728
FREE Loss for the year 9 (56,553) (48,110)
Hit 2% Other comprehensive expense
BTrEEF 7 EZEm2ELH - ltem that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
KEBRIHREEN 2 EM Loss on revaluation of land and buildings
EE - HIRMEBEMER held for own use, net of related income
tax (23,579) (4,539)
RIEBRAREEF 7 B EE 28 2 Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
EH profit or loss:
BREBNMEBZENEHE Exchange differences arising on translation
BBTERE of foreign operations, with nil tax impact (1,331) (2,481)
HESMEKBERTT Reclassification of cumulative translation
EXREENIHE reserve upon disposal of a foreign
operation = (7,251)
(24,910) (14,271)
AEEZHMAXERE Total comprehensive expense for the year (81,463) (62,381)

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B B 4 M A R 2 7
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Z-RF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

—EBE-HE —EME
2025 2024
it = THET FTHET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
THATEERFERSR : Loss for the year attributable to:
EVNETESY =N Owners of the Company (56,546) (48,100)
IR IR R Non-controlling interests 7) (10)
(56,553) (48,110)
THALTEEZEBZEHE: Total comprehensive expense attributable to:
AATEEA Owners of the Company (81,456) (62,371)
IR ES Non-controlling interests (7) (10)
(81,463) (62,381)
BT BT
HK$ HK$
BRER Loss per share
%N Basic 13 (0.20) (0.17)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZE-_AF=H=+—H As at 31 March 2025

—E_RE —E-NE
2025 2024
oY = THERT THER
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
REYHE Investment properties 14 129,498 138,115
ME BMERRE Property, plant and equipment 14 301,899 342,410
FREEE Right-of-use assets 15 22,392 32,996
EffEE Deposits paid 16 5,259 3,818
EEFEREE Deferred tax assets 22 1,237 323
460,285 517,662
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 17 26,751 27,273
JE UL BR 3R I L th FE U 3K Trade and other receivables 18 17,854 28,645
RITERRRE Bank balances and cash 4,724 23,558
49,329 79,476
nREAR Current liabilities
FE 15 BR R 2 L fth BB A5 K Trade and other payables 19 23,854 26,379
HEERE Lease liabilities 20 25,215 25,334
FEAS B8 Tax payable 213 1,494
BE Borrowings 21 66,978 50,725
116,260 103,932
nEAEFE Net current liabilities (66,931) (24,456)
EEABRRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 393,354 493,206
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
WZE-_RAFE=A=+—H As at 31 March 2025

—ECEHF —T-NE
2025 2024
oY = THERT FTHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEMR Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 20 6,550 17,539
ELEFEHER Deferred tax liabilities 22 69,332 76,732
75,882 94,271
BEEFE Net assets 317,472 398,935
EXRRE Capital and reserves
& < Share capital 23 2,880 2,880
N Reserves 315,856 397,312
RAREEAEMLRRER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 318,736 400,192
FEREDS Non-controlling interests (1,264) (1,257)
IR R Total equity 317,472 398,935

F2E176BRZGEUBBRRENR=S-AFA~A=1THKE The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 176 were
EERAELFATRY YR TIEEAREE approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

30 June 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
RIRAR ®ISE
Director Director
5=E 5=E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_T-_AF=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

AREREAER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FEBBLE NRERRRE FERER
k& ke EE Rt EiGfE Statutory Property 2t EE Non-  BRREZ
Share Share Other Exchange reserve  revaluation  Accumulated &3t controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests equity
Thn TAn TR Tan Thn TAn TER Tin Thn TAn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(M) (RyEii)
(note i) (note ii)
EA 2-ZEMA-R At1 April 2023 2,880 65,327 121 20,701 9,336 436,292 (72,094) 462,563 (1,247) 461,316
EREE Loss for the year = - - - - - (48,100) (48,100) (10) (48,110)
BEABLHRBENZEEER  Loss on revaluation of land and buildings
held for own use - - - - - (16,269) - (16,269) - (16,269)
EREEEARLBRBENZAER  Income tax relating to revaluation of land
and buildings held for own use - - - - - 2,927 - 2,927 - 2,927
HERBADREOEEMEEERR  Reversal of income tax relating to revaluation
THREENEEN of land and buildings held for own use upon
FiE% (K2s5) disposal of subsidaries (note 25) - - - - - 8,803 - 8,803 = 8,603
HESNERE Reclassification of cumulative translation
ZHERBEZEHIE (M) reseve upon disposal of a foreign
operation (note 25) = = = (7,251) = = = (7,251) - (7,251)
BEBNSBAELZERZR Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign operations = = = (2,481) = = = (2,481) = (2,481)
ER2ERTAR Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (9,732) - 4,539) (48,100) (62,371) (10) 62,381)
HENBARRERE Transfer to accumulated loss upon
23t E8 (i) disposal of subsidiaries (note 25) - - - - (4,024) (28,773) 32,797 - - -
RZS-MEZR=1-BR At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024
“E-MERR-R 2,880 65,327 11 10,969 5,312 402,980 (87,397) 400,192 (1,257) 398,935
EREE Loss for the year - - - - - - (56,546) (56,546) (7) (56,553)
BIEERLHREENZEMEE  Loss on revaluation of land and buildings
held for own use - - - - - (28,247) - (28,247) - (28,247)
EREBEARTBRBENZAEH  Income tax relating to revaluation of land
and buildings held for own use = = = - - 4,668 - 4,668 - 4,668
BERMNERFELZEREE  Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign operations - - - (1,331) - - - (1,331) - (1,331)

ERRERRER Total comprehensive expense for the year 5 = = (1,331) - (23,579) (56,546) (81,456) (7) (81,463)

RZBZTF=A=1-H At 31 March 2025 2,880 65,327 121 9,638 5,312 379,401 (143,943) 318,736 (1,264) 317472

et - Notes:

() HMBEEERBER-ZEZS-F—_A-THEHENZE (i) Other reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
EAMBBZHBAE ZHQZKEEEEEMM’EE%KEZﬂ& of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
RABBTRACHEBEZER - value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange thereof

pursuant to a group reorganisation which became effective on 25
January 2002.
(iy BEBEIIBELEBRAzPE ME (TR ED & (i)  According to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws

= $"TZEFIW1M11 7 2%1@1@&;&%%"
B ABAREESRBIRBRENES - BEFRT
Zﬁﬂ%%ééﬁ\;\ﬂjifhﬁ?ﬁémﬂ BAHEEREHE)
ZI0%EREIRBESA  HEZESCHERESHF
MEARZ50%71E - WHE ST AFEMBERERS
BEEARAZ - hERNHBLAR 2ESS A RHERE
BREZFEBRIHRIRBRENES R-FFTHF
TAZ=TEHERIEAE BA-ZZF-—F—Hi:
FHERTBREEEF BRI ENBTRBRER
ESFHEE-

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B B 4 M A R 2 7

applicable to wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises,
Mainland China subsidiaries of the Company are required to set up
two statutory reserve funds, general reserve fund and staff general
fund. General reserve fund was set up by appropriating at least
10% of their annual profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
regulations, until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of their
registered capital. This fund can be used to make good losses or to
convert into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained profits to staff
general fund was made at the discretion of the board of directors of
Mainland China subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon the revision of the
law on 27 October 2005 and no transfer to staff general fund has
been made since then.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

—E-RE —EME
2025 2024
it = THET THET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
RERH Operating activities
PR AT &5 18 Loss before tax (59,860) (49,838)
BT SIE R Adjustments for:
7l AR Finance costs 5,697 4,416
FE U A Interest income (252) (735)
REVERAREZE2ER Loss on changes in fair value of investment
properties 14 8,352 16,136
M BMEREZEZFE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 14,781 13,649
FRESEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 25,699 22,502
M- -BERRBZAEESR Impairment losses on property, plant and
HER equipment, net 9 87 219
FREEEZREREFAE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets, net 9 3,385 2,893
REZLALHESOzWE Gain on early termination of lease contracts 7 (1,197) (395)
HEWE - BE KRBz WE Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (254) (98)
HENB AR ZEE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries _ 3,477
RAEBESEHA 2 Operating cash flows before movements in
REFSRE working capital (3,562) 12,226
FERD (M) Decrease (increase) in inventories 407 (4,818)
JE W BR R % EL At FE R 2 Decrease (increase) in trade and
A () other receivables 3,812 (1,452)
EARRREMESRZ (Decrease) increase in trade and
(Rl 18 0 other payables (2,649) 2,414
REXK (R MBEE Cash (used in) from operations (1,992) 8,370
2B BIBIAER Income tax outside Hong Kong paid (1,526) (1,980)
RETER (A MEREFHE Net cash (used in) from operating activities (3,518) 6,390
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BABHEHEE
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

e -2 —EBRONE
2025 2024
it = THET THET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
REZH Investing activities
REHSRS Refund of rental deposit 5,090 5,683
HEYZE MERRXEZFSFHIE Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 254 98
HEWB QAR ZRERAFEE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries 25 = 22,396
EBAE Interest received 252 735
BAYE  BERZE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,897) (2,868)
s Ee Payments for rental deposits (948) (3,484)
REZBHFBRETHE Net cash from investing activities 1,751 22,560
METH Financing activities
BERTEE Repayment of bank borrowings (94,614) (71,066)
EEHEEE Repayment of lease liabilities (27,460) (27,749)
2RFE Interest paid (5,697) (4,416)
MEEE 2 PTG RIE Proceeds from new borrowings 110,867 84,491
METHFMARESFE Net cash used in financing activities (16,904) (18,740)
RERREEEY ORD) Net (decrease) increase in cash and
0 E R cash equivalents (18,671) 10,210
REDzHeRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 23,558 13,775
EXEH 2L Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (163) (427)
RERZARERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
RRBITEBRRAES represented by bank balances and cash 4,724 23,558
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

—REH

SFERERARLR (A2F ] REKWE QB L
BIAEBED D -—XBEFREHS QA EFENE
(“NAR—FEB=ZHRZEH  BEBREBIT) AFRERS
MK ZEREERAT  HRONREBHESRS
FERRABER LS - AHAEZER D E BSuper Result
Consultants Limited ([ Super Result]) » AR H—K
REABELZBHESEMALZBRAR c RAREFER
HITEBRRANEE [RELE D) REAQAAHITESER
gL+ ([ 1) % B Super ResultiFH 46.7%M
e AARAMPEERTEL XM 2T R
AABZFRFARNER —FIKE -

ARAB-—RREZERDF - ARFAMNBARZEE
EBRR/RT RERTEREHRARENH - BEAD
RAIEEMB LR ZFIFEHNMEE32 -

REMBHRRDUEBRT (B 2% TAXLFZ
WMEEEH o

GENERAL INFORMATION

Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”;
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”)
is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
ultimate holding company is Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”), a limited company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”),
the chairman and executive director of the Company, and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”), executive director
of the Company, each holds 46.7% equity interest in Super
Result. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section of Corporate Information in the Company’s annual

report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
design, manufacture and retail of fashion apparel and
accessories. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 32.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

2 ERFTREBIETEMEHREESTER 2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

REFERHERZEBUBRSEANSHER Z2E Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are

N mandatorily effective for the current year

RAFE  AEERERGSHBHRERE - BAEA In the current year, the Group has applied the following
THHBESTMAS ([HBSHMAE D) BMMHILHN amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
TECNENA-BRZERRZFERBEREER Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
ZEBMIEHREER ST ER BT A (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily

effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1

April 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:
BEENBREENF R 2BTE EREDNZEEEE Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
BERETERE IR ZBITER KEBEIBEARDN Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
FRBREBRE Current or Non-Current and
F5% (Z222F) related amendments to Hong Kong
ZHBBTR Interpretation 5 (2020)
BERETERE IR ZBIAR Wi 22 Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
*RBERE Covenants
EREHEAETAREBUBREE HEGRERY Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
BIE7R 2B A and HKFRS 7
BRTHEN  AEERAEBIEREENSHEL Except as describe below, the application of the
ZABFRT AR E AR E B R AN F B KB F E 2 M0 & amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the current
RER/RZEREUBERRABZHBEL RS XY year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
&- positions and performance for the current and prior years

and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in

the current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification

of liabilities as current or noncurrent, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the classification should not be affected
by management intentions or expectations to settle the

liability within 12 months.

e clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a
transfer of cash, goods or services, or the entity’s own
equity instruments to the counterparty. If a liability has
terms that could, at the option of the counter party,
result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:

Presentation”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the 2022 Amendments
specifically clarify that only covenants that an entity is
required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement
of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only
after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments also specify
that covenants with which an entity must comply after the
reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect the
classification of a liability as current or non-current at the
reporting date. However, if the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period, an entity discloses information that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk of the liabilities
becoming repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period. This would include information about the
covenants, the carrying amount of related liabilities and
facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity

may have difficulties complying with the covenants.

The application of the amendments in the current year had
no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in

issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards, that have

been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated

financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS

Accounting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 21

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments®

Contracts Referencing

Nature-dependent Electricity?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture'

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards —
Volume 11°

Lack of Exchangeability?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting

Standards mentioned below, the directors of the Company

(the “Directors”) anticipate that the application of all other

new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards will

have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements in the foreseeable future.
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2 ERAFHIRKEITEBMEREEDNSEL 2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

The amendments to HKFRS 9 clarify the recognition and
derecognition for financial asset and financial liability and
add an exception which permits an entity to deem a
financial liability to be discharged before the settlement
date if it is settled in cash using an electronic payment

system if, and only if certain conditions are met.

The amendments also provide guidance on the assessment
of whether the contractual cash flows of a financial asset
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. The
amendments specify that an entity should focus on what an
entity is being compensated for rather than the
compensation amount. Contractual cash flows are
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement if they are
indexed to a variable that is not a basic lending risk or cost.
The amendments state that, in some cases, a contingent
feature may give rise to contractual cash flows that are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement both before
and after the change in contractual cash flows, but the
nature of the contingent event itself does not relate directly
to changes in basic lending risks and costs. Furthermore,
the description of the term “non-recourse” is enhanced and
the characteristics of “contractually linked instruments” are

clarified in the amendments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
(continued)

The disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7 in respect of
investments in equity instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are amended. In
particular, entities are required to disclose the fair value
gain or loss presented in other comprehensive income
during the period, showing separately those related to
investments derecognised during the reporting period and
those related to investments held at the end of the reporting
period. An entity is also required to disclose any transfers
of the cumulative gain or loss within equity related to the
investments derecognised during the reporting period. In
addition, the amendments introduce the requirements of
qualitative and quantitative disclosure of contractual terms
that could affect the contractual cash flow based on a
contingent event not directly relating to basic lending risks

and cost.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2026, with early
application permitted. The application of the amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the financial

position and performance of the Group.
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2 ERAFHIRKEITEBMEREEDNSEL 2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS

(&)

ERVBBERAFIBRUBRRNEZIREE

BRMBRELENF 18R MBRRN2FIRBE IR
FIBBRNZIIRBRERE - SMATBEFHER
FURIMBHREROZ] - ZHTEBMBEIREER
B EARNEEEBE T ENFE 1R SZBRENE K
SIAFHRE BERNEBERREINEEEIRERE D
AR BERRMERHEEEREAEEANEENRK
B UREVBBRABRBENEARIEER - It
S BEBEFEAFIRETRECBERBSTE
RISESSR BT R - Bt EENEH I REEBH
BHRELAE7RIEMTE  KBESE| - FESF
ZAFTRIRERERIRBBETERENE
MR E R 1T B BRIEET o

FAHERHMTEAR S ERRUBHRRPBERRN
2IRWE - AEBEEEFEEBHBREEDSE18
THAKERESMBRERNARBSE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B B 4 M A R 2 7

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements”, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS
1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. This new HKFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to
present specified categories and defined subtotals in the
statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes to
the financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the
financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs
have been moved to HKAS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error” and HKFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. Minor amendments to
HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” and HKAS 33 “Earnings

per Share” are also made.

The application of the new standard is expected to affect
the presentation of the statement of profit or loss and
disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group is
in the process of assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18

on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2025 4 4¢ #t



3

o)

3.1

MBEBRZEREEREAETFRREN

REVMBBRZEREE

REMBBRRCEREBEHMDASHM2EE
MBHBELENSHERNRH - BERGS MR
RZBNME  ENREERZSENERET
BEEREZRR ZSERUBERBEAN - It
I BERMBBRTISEREEBMEXEMEA
RAFBREZ EMRAUREBDTRPFARE 2B
EWESE-

ERBGEHBREE > ERAEER=Z2=5
F=ZRA=+-BZRBABEBLARBEEN
66,931,000/87C - EECEEEZEREBH ZARK
RBES

R-ZBE-HF=ZA=+—H8 ' ()FEEFERS
RESEENE HK4,724,0008 T ; (iDK
57,463,000 TR BEIREE ; (i) A ZKE
AHRTRENA16,339,000 BT & (iv)IREA
BEHA311,432,0008 T2 HFEFE AL R EE
YRR EYER T HEF o

A 7 S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$66,931,000 as at 31
March 2025.

As at 31 March 2025, (i) total cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$4,724,000 were held
by the Group, (ii) approximately HK$57,463,000 of
borrowings were revolving in nature, (iii) unutilised
bank facilities amounted to approximately
HK$16,339,000 were available, and (iv) approximately
HK$311,432,000 aggregate carrying value of land and
buildings held for own use and investment properties

were available for pledge.
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3 BANBRECRHNEEREASHERESR 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
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3.1 WEUMBRRZEREE (F) 3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Subsequent to 31 March 2025, the Group obtained
additional financing through (i) the intention of Mr.
Chan, a controlling shareholder of the Company, to
provide continuing financial support of long-term loan
facility amounting to HK$20,000,000, pursuant to
which the Group drew down HK$2,500,000 in May
2025 and HK$1,000,000 in June 2025; and (ii) a new
bank facility of approximately HK$6,452,000, which
was fully drawn down by the Group in June 2025.

The Directors are of the view that they are actively
and regularly reviewing the Group’s debt structure
through roll-over and/or re-financing its existing
borrowings under current bank facilities, and will
consider making use of the unpledged assets to obtain

additional banking facilities, when necessary.

Based on the aforesaid factors and consideration of the
cash flow forecast for the coming twelve months, the
Directors have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, the Group will continue to adopt a going
concern basis of accounting when preparing the

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
investment properties and land and buildings held for
own use, which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value

in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and

best use.

For investment properties and land and buildings held
for own use which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of

the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability.

3.2 Material accounting policies information
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns

through its power over the entity.
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date on
which control commences until the date on which

control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners

of the Company.

Annual Report 2025 4 4 4 Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 ¥ £ [ 2 # 81

._-FH‘ - ‘



82

N

A T 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3

REMBBRZEREEREASTRRESR
(&)

32 EAREHREREN(H)
B8 2 AR HEFER 2 ()

REERHBERRAEBRREEFE2ERE
TR R 5 B8R ©

EREEAEHNB AR ZIEHER  HRIERE
REZMBARCEERAE  UREMHEREZHE
ERED R HMESARID o EAMEE RS
HBERBHRPER - AR E R RRE 2EM
BERKEEGIEEEARENE -

RRABFBRRRATRMBEARNRE - BE
BABREEMREBERARK-

REMERERRDESWAR, RAERIEE
MERZ LR REBEY -

RYRFERE - REMEDERS (BEEAH
BEREER)TE - RARERR  REWETD
BAREE  UHRMBREMARNREST &S
HEWAMELRAR REVEIAEBZLE
FHEHHEREMEMEE 2 EMRAREE
HREEHBEEES AR -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B B 4 M A R 2 7

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as

equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling interests
and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary is measured at fair

value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses.

Investment properties
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned to earn rental income and/or for capital

appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any indirectly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income. Gains or losses arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment properties are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.
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3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Investment properties (continued)
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.

If a property becomes an owner-occupied property
because its use has been changed as evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation, the fair value of
the property at the date of change in use is considered

as the deemed cost for subsequent accounting.

Property, plant and equipment

The land held for own use and buildings thereon are
stated at their revalued amount, being their fair value
at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.
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3 HREMBHRRZFHEEREASHHREER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
W% BERRE(E) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

e when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

e when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.

If a property becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be

transferred directly to accumulated losses.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—

Z-RF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives,

and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated lives for the current and comparative

periods are as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired terms of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 50 years from the

date of completion.

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of 5 years and

the period of the lease

Plant and machinery 10 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment

is recognised in profit or loss.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and

equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

HE—

Z-RF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Leases
The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception of the contract. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the

contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease

components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other

applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carpark spaces and certain
retail stores that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line

basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3 HREMBHRRZFHEEREASHHREER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(#&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
HE (&) Leases (continued)
KREBFEHAEA () The Group as a lessee (continued)
EAEEE Right-of-use assets
ERAREENRARLRE The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
e HESBWHUIHESHE e the amount of the initial measurement of the

lease liability;

o RRAKRBEHBIZAFEHOEMBEENK e any lease payments made at or before the

B S WREAEEE ; commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e XFEEFELENEFANBEERS K e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o AFARERFHREBHRAEBREE EFRAEH *  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

EEMESHABHREEERZHEEN in dismantling and removing the underlying

16 TR B A 4 BT 38 T8 AR 5 T 7= 28 R R AN (il 5T © assets, restoring the site on which it is located or

restoring the underlying asset to the condition

required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

EREEEERNB MR E R ERBER Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
B YHREESEENEFNERAEFELARE - accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

FEBEERESNEENERSISHEBES Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
EEMBRNEAREENRHBEHEAERSE certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
HERMEHRTE - EEMBERT  EHAEE assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
ENERZREGTIEAFRREEH (UR from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
BERE)NIE - Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a

straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated

useful life and the lease term.

REERGEMBMRRARPEEAEEERINR The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
EB¥EA - line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use

assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 BANERECRAHERSASHKZEE 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(#&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 EXRETBERER (HF) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
HE (&) Leases (continued)
KEEEBRABA (&) The Group as a lessee (continued)
HEBE#E) Lease liabilities (continued)
TEHUARIEERAEME 2 IR HENRE RS Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
SAHEEEREAEEEZTESR > ML index or a rate are not included in the measurement of
BRARZEESEREBE 2B ARRARS - lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are

recognised as expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

REK B % HEAEREFFERBEEMNRK After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
fEHFREE o adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

EHRAUTER AEESEHAEHEEE The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
(L AEEREEEFEHARERAR) ! corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

assets) whenever:

e HEEMEENTEEEEREENTME e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
A8 EZBERT - HEAEAEEBE the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
FREFHTME A B2 EBTRIRRERE in which case the related lease liability is
BIHENRMEHTE - remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using a revised discount rate at the date

of reassessment.

e MHENREZMDSHTEDSHELX e the lease payments change due to changes in
BEmMED  FUBERT  HEEESEE market rental rates following a market rent
BUNBRRZRRREBITHENRTE review, in which case the related lease liability is
HEtE e remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using the initial discount rate.

o MHESHNAFBI HEBITFERES e a lease contract is modified and the lease
HESR (R T XERHEET INEEH modification is not accounted for as a separate
&) o lease (see below for the accounting policy for

“lease modifications”).

FEERGEVBERAREEEEELIHES The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
HH e item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a

separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more

underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect

the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the

relevant right-of-use asset.
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3 HEHMBHRRZEREEREARETHEFEER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

32 EAREHREREN(H)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)

HE (&) Leases (continued)
KREBFEHAEA () The Group as a lessee (continued)
HEEE] (&) Lease modifications (continued)
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When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate

stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value

model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative

stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are

considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group

of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease under that standard.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase

under that standard.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the

consolidated statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that
are subject to regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the definition of

cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than

for investment or other purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and

cash equivalents as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the

Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention

in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as

appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 HREMBHRRZFHEEREASHHREER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

(#&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
=@ T A (&) Financial instruments (continued)
BEBRFNZEDAEREPBRAEEREER SR The effective interest method is a method of
BEMNEHERARDERNSWARFEMZHNA calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
E o BEAERDIBMETERREEWARMSR (@ financial liability and of allocating interest income and
FERAEX N RIMEEE T ERERFIE interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
ZRARBEMEENITENERNED) Hxﬁr’aﬂ interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
EERNEHMEENRBERFY  IREHE future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
(58 BRFREDLSEIARREFENT and points paid or received that form an integral part
o of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and

other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

THEE Financial assets
SREENSERERE

p=1112

19 Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets
FEUTHRENEREELRIZBHEBAE Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e RUBEEHNREREHBHNEEERX o the financial asset is held within a business model

THENERMEE R whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e AHRIRNEEEHELENRESREESR e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates

INARERAKREERSENFE - to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including deposits paid, trade and other receivables
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 HEHMBHRRZEREEREARETHEFEER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

32 EAREHREREN(H)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)

TETA(E) Financial instruments (continued)
THEE (&) Financial assets (continued)

ARBERBMBREZEREIR T IURENE B

EERE (&)
RHEMFESREER T ANERERSH AR
EURNEBNEMHBEE2RBREERE - Y
o 2ERERFEEER(T12MEARMEER
BEDEAMRBESARRI2EARNTERLEN
ENSHMEBE 2B RHBEEERANZES
DoHEIREAEENELFEFRERE
T URBEBABENERE  —REBNRR
BB H RS B 2 E AR 5 R 3R 5 TR Y R4
EHFR -

SR R R TR 2 S TR A A o
BEAE 2 R A ATV AL o

R ERMEENS - RPEEBER2
BRABMEEBRTE BRFEFERRBANRE
RLRAEEEN - FRBERT - AIREEER 2
HEMEERE EORIAZHABCEEEETD
RI5 B ANHERURE S HRENR AT REMERE
Bex F8 2 48 0 7 HE AT B4 o
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Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from

all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed

individually.

For all other financial assets, ECL is measured at 12m
ECL unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 HEMBHRRZEREEREARETHEFEER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

32 EAREHREREN(H)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)

2HT A (&) Financial instruments (continued)

THEE (B) Financial assets (continued)
BERBEBHBREERNFIRTUREN SR Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
EERE (&) under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) fFERBREZEEM (i)  Significant increase in credit risk

A EERRENEEIUAREEEE
BME AEBELERERTARNESEH
HREZNNEREZER T ERNHRER
AAHRENNER o LGRS - RNEE
SZRAEAEBNEEREMEN B
RREEBRRBAREBETLERARITHE
BN ESHRIEEESR -

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that

is available without undue cost or effort.

AHR  FEEERBRETREEEMNES
ZRETHEH :

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk

has increased significantly:

SRIEZE (NE) AR EE T
ANBERFEHRHREREL

FERBNISTSERHREERE
£ lIEERZRIEEMN  REB
ANEEENEHERKE LA

X% MBIEBMRRNRERER
THEFMEREBABTHERE
fERYBE D KIE T F%
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e an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if

available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit

default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 HREMBHRRZFHEEREASHHREER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(#&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
=@ T A (&) Financial instruments (continued)
EHEE (E) Financial assets (continued)
BERBEBHBREERNFIRTUREN SR Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
EERE (&) under HKFRS 9 (continued)
(i) FERBREZEMNE) (i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
e BEHRAREXENERIFEHHRE e an actual or expected significant
REL R deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
e BHEAEE KERFMBRRENER e an actual or expected significant adverse
FEAERTFNEZDMEREHEAR change in the regulatory, economic, or
THEBESENED KRB TR - technological environments of the debtor

that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Ewm LRI AEROMT AEBBRRNS Irrespective of the outcome of the above
HNEREBHEBRI0KX > MIEERREB DR assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
BRBURE RIEEM EAEEEETSE risk has increased significantly since initial
BEENENBERERIL ML - BI{ER recognition when contractual payments are more
A o than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

AEEEHEZAUBAEERBES K The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
BB M RE 2w - BETRE (WEE) the criteria used to identify whether there has
REERFERETE S R0 H AT BB S B R been a significant increase in credit risk and
KRAEFIE N © revises them as appropriate to ensure that the

criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes

past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (continued)
(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any

collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

the borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or

past due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 AAMEBRECREEEREASHKEER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
2HT A (&) Financial instruments (continued)
THEE (B) Financial assets (continued)
BERBEBHBREERNFIRTUREN SR Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
EERE (&) under HKFRS 9 (continued)
(i) EERESREE (&) (iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)
. ERANERAREBERATBRE e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
HHQENS A A @ E AR S or contractual reasons relating to the
ERATERTZENER borrower’s financial difficulty, having

granted to the borrower a concession(s) that

the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

or
e RBRABTREEBEREIEGUBE e it is becoming probable that the borrower
e will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.

(iv) MSEBER (iv)  Write-off policy
ERETHIERBENRKRESKRKE The Group writes off a financial asset when there
AR (PN T RERRCEARERF is information indicating that the counterparty is
) AEBHMESHEE - RERER in severe financial difficulty and there is no
BREEE)  WHHENEREE & realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
MARAEBWERFETRHBITEE ° the counterparty has been placed under
MHE R BUEEREIE - ERHE AW E £ liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
B P ER - proceedings. Financial assets written off may still

be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a

loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 HEHMBHRRZEREEREARETHEFEER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

32 EAREHREREN(H)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)

TETA(E) Financial instruments (continued)
THEE (&) Financial assets (continued)
BEREREREE Derecognition of financial assets

FEEERBEERNRES R 2 OBR BB
BERREHMEE - BUHRRRHHENATEZ
TREER EEREESECWRERRERMN
B8 NIEEHER -

EHEEBRRAE
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N o
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o

fin
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire. On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a

residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, lease liabilities and borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and
only when the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs;

Annual Report 2025 44 Moiselle International Holdings Limited %¢ i B4 B 48 [l 45 R 2+ & 107

._-FH‘ - ‘



A T 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 EANRHRECRREERSASHKZER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
EE&E#H W (&) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

e RENH FAEENBEYNRARIBEEF
ERNEE %

e AFEENBEANALRERAZHASEARE
RAZNEE MAKERRAGNTER
NESEEONRKIA -

B WHESREFESHREE RUREZEHIE
HY B P BEFR R o
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£ MAAKEER L E [ % 5 WEAE (317 W E
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e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants

will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated

reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as the related service is

provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 AAMEBRECREEEREASHKEER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Fig# Income tax
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Income tax expense represents the sum of current and

deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of

goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Income tax (continued)
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale, except for freehold
land, which is always presumed to be recovered

entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the
right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Income tax (continued)
For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the lease liabilities
and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease
liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax

liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

e the same taxable entity; or

e  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities

or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 SO RCFEREEENE RS STHEER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(& STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EARSHEHEER (&) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
BE Provisions
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. When a
fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of

the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 HREMBHRRZFHEEREASHHREER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
(RN Borrowing costs
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:
(@) has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or
(c) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Z-RF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3

BE—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3 EANRHRECRREERSASHKZER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
(4&) STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2 EXEFBERER (F) 3.2 Material accounting policies information (continued)
BHA L () Related parties (continued)
(i) MHEESTIEAGELE NERERAEFHS (ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
BE : (#F) following conditions applies: (continued)
(g R QPiEBALTHEREERZE (g A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
HRBEZER (ZERZEAA)E influence over the entity or is a member of
ZEEENE the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

(hy BEEREIHMBEEEZEMKEDFM (h) The entity, or any member of a group of
REBRAEB G RRARHEEE which it is a part, provides key management
BAERT - personnel services to the Group or to the

Group’s parent.

BRAT ZARREREREZENEEEREK Close members of the family of a person are those
LREPASEZENATRZESE ZRKEK family members who may be expected to influence, or
Eo be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

7 EEHE Segment reporting

BENHRGEVBRRAE2RETA/PBEEZE Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
HEEHRETFASESRITHEEASHREIR item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
PEEAGEAEEREBIENE 2RR 2MKEE are identified from the financial information provided
Bl o regularly to the Group’s senior executive management

for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various

geographical locations.
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if

e the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

EREBER 2 EEHE Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
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BretBEARTREGEUBRRTER 2EH
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The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that certain of the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties in Mainland China
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted. For certain investment properties
in Hong Kong on which the “sale” presumption is not
rebutted, the Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties in Hong
Kong above the qualified cost as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the
investment properties in Hong Kong above the qualified

cost on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses regularly whether right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment have any indication of
impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating units to which these assets
belong would be determined by reference to the higher of
their value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. Value
in use is determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Due to inherent risk associated with estimations in
the timing and magnitude of the future cash flows
calculated with certain growth rate as key input and fair
value less costs of disposal, the estimated recoverable
amount of the assets may be different from their actual
recoverable amount and profit or loss could be affected by
the accuracy of the estimations. Furthermore, the still
volatile and complicated business environment which was
marked by irrepressibly high inflation, interest rate hikes by
major central banks as a response in some developed
countries, escalating geopolitical conflicts and, in the case
of China, the ongoing crisis in the property sector, there are

potential disruptions to the Group's retail operations.

Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
land and buildings held for own use are assessed by the
Directors based on valuations prepared by an independent
firm of qualified professional property valuers by making
reference to the capitalisation rate and comparable market
transactions. The valuation models used by the property
valuer make use of market inputs. Should changes be made
to the market inputs, the corresponding valuation of
investment properties and land and buildings held for own

use would change.
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EZREE - RELEHN  WEFEZMETERF
EREERREE  AESHEFE -ARTSEBEZTR
e BRHEBERATREMGITAREE - i
AP EM TR BB -

5 WERIBER
AEBTEREBHTEREHETE PR HRE R E
fie BE-ZE_FFER-_FE_NF=A=+—AHLEF
E - SHERE R RES 2 WERERRNT TEF K
TR AR o

EFEHNZENEE
EEmETRERE  REFBEREERZESE
TEERZHMRELERERERF2BELM (X

) B 50 66 5 B el AR Bl B B oz W3R - R P LIS
MRERZERE A 2ERRAWHEBESRSE
WE BEFREEEBEEMK—RAVNZAXR
SE®% REREXNTEFZA  AEBEMARM
EmUEBzRSEREARGNERE -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis
and historical consumption trends. Based on this review,
write-down of inventories will be made when the estimated
net realisable value of inventories decline below their
carrying amounts. Due to changes in market trends, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and profit or

loss could be affected by accuracy of this estimation.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group generated sales of fashion apparel and
accessories with customers mainly through its own retail
stores. For the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024,
revenue from sales of fashion apparel and accessories is
recognised at a point in time when the goods are delivered

to the customers.

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Revenue from sales of fashion apparel and accessories is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
the point where the customer purchases and takes the
goods at the retail stores directly or when the goods have
been transported to the customers’ specified location
(delivery). Transportation and other related activities that
incurred before customers obtain control of the related
products are considered as fulfilment activities. Payment of
the transaction price is generally due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the goods in the retail stores.
The transaction price received by the Group for goods that
require delivery is recognised as a contract liability until

the goods have been delivered to the customer.
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

Wk ER (&) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
EFEHE T Customer loyalty program

AEEEBAKRENERAEESEF - REFERE
T8 REEES  ERFABEMESRARBED
URREGEBED RIRBEENR - X5 EHRIEZEE
HE-CHEBREEIREERRREBRESD - RE
BMoSFIH  FRUREEIH BB 2 EWEE
RBRBED  RBBEI2WERZERBEIEE
AR ARER - REEINECRARZHAEDS
BHEBE(2INIEFERIET) °

PEEREFENZH TRANEFZXZER

HARBITENEEZEFEN (BEEFLHES
ZRBED) 2RBAMEHB -—FHUT - BUMER
MBMELRBISHRAETFNER  2BREZZEH KR
BITENEEZRZEBRRTHRE -

The Group operates a customer loyalty programme for sales
through the Group’s retail stores where customers
accumulate award points for purchases made which entitle
them to redeem award points as sales discounts in the
future. The transaction price is allocated to the product and
the award points on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The award points expire every year and customers
can redeem the award points any time before the specified
expiration date. Revenue from the award points is
recognised when the award points are used or expired.
Contract liabilities, presented under “Accrued charges”, are

recognised until the award points are used or expired.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied performance
obligations, including award points under the customer
loyalty programme, have original expected durations of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied performance

obligations are not disclosed.
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

Wik D HEFR ()

2EHEHR

FEERMEVEEEREY REAFKESRT
HEBABRABE2RAIRERRFERE Z2ER -
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DEFEEEARUT AT 2|DE -

s EBEBENTRHEERMEREORME -

. EESNEBEATEABREERLE  UR
ReER - AR ASHESRRERENS
e o

A DR RRER DB D
THEEAS IR T AL
ZEE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

e The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of house

brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

e The outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China and
sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets

attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reportable segment profit/loss is
profit/loss from operations with the exclusion of other
income, other gains and losses and certain administrative
and other operating expenses. Income tax is not allocated

to reportable segments.

Segment assets and liabilities of the Group are not reported
to the Group’s senior executive management. As a result,
reportable segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in the consolidated financial statements.
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Wk o HER (F

DEER (F)

ATEHI D2 ETHRREMIIMERER 2S5
BURAAMRE e

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information (continued)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in

note 3.
i FEEN ATE2HR DA
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong  Total reportable segments
“E-RE “E-NE —E-hE —E-_NFE —E-hE —E-NF
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

TRxr TEx  TEx TR  TEx  TE=n
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

HREF MR Revenue from external customers 61,005 83,913 41,717 53,398 102,722 137311
2 EE Inter-segment revenue* 5,380 7,459 8,794 20,697 14,174 28,156
2 Segment revenue 66,385 91,372 50,511 74,095 116,896 165,467
2EER (H8) Segment profit (loss) 3,118 18,370 (10,163) (2,475) (7,045) 15,895

R EDMEEB AL Amount regularly provided to the Group’s
EHRREERRTHR senior executive management included in

EEABRMCEH: the measurement of segment results:

NE BERXENE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 413 260 1,336 581 1,749 841

FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17,204 16,553 8,316 5,857 25,520 22,410
ME - BERKEZRE  Impairment losses on property, plant and

E#E equipment 25 - 62 219 87 219
EREEEZHERSE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 2,711 587 674 2,306 3,385 2,893
* oEEBRENRETHE L SETE - *  Inter-segment revenue is charged at amounts agreed by both

parties.
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

5 WKk DBER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
D EER (FF) Segment information (continued)
7 BB 85 R A2 H R Reconciliation of segment revenue and results
—E-RE —E-NE
2025 2024
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
&= Revenue
2z B = Total segment revenue 116,896 165,467
7 E FE U 2= £ 85 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (14,174) (28,156)
102,722 137,311
D Eb (E518) &= 7 Segment (loss) profit (7,045) 15,895
AOBYE BERREITE Unallocated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (13,032) (12,808)
AOBMEREEERE Unallocated depreciation of right-of-use
assets (179) (92)
Hith R 5 BBl % Other unallocated expenses (30,895) (33,932)
Httm AR Hfth s R &8 Other income and other gains and losses 5,340 1,651
REMERAABEERB 2EE Loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties (8,352) (16,136)
il & X A Finance costs (5,697) (4,416)
MRB AT 1B Loss before taxation (59,860) (49,838)
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

WKk DIBER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEBE R (4F) Segment information (continued)
1 B &) Geographic information

TREINBBOAEEINIREFFRE S RIDAEER
BYME DX BERRBUREAEEE ((EEH*
RBEE]) 2HBENEEN - TR BNV ETIRE
RNERMZUBEEE - EEHFRBEEZHMBELET
REBEECERNUE (HBREVEUARDE  BE
R RE&EmI (HBEEREEE) MET -

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers; and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use
assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the
goods were delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset in the case of investment properties
and property, plant and equipment, and the location of

operations in the case of right-of-use assets.

HNREF W EEFRBDEE
Revenue from Specified

external customers non-current assets

—E-RHE —E-ME —E-HE —E-_NE
2025 2024 2025 2024
FTHER FTAET TET FTEx
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 61,005 83,913 314,132 362,931
B P Macau 9,689 11,463 7,571 8,826
ARl At Mainland China 25,012 31,160 131,866 141,483
= Taiwan 7,016 10,775 220 281
41,717 53,398 139,657 150,590
102,722 137,311 453,789 513,521

EHLTEEFZEH Information about major customers

BE_ZE_HFR_FT_NF=A=+—HILFE -
BMERBE - IAEFEFzUREAEBRREZETFE 2
1 O%Ei J’XJ: ®

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, there

was no single external customer that contributed 10% or

more of the Group's total revenue.
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

6 HMlA 6  OTHER INCOME
—E-HE —E-WEF
2025 2024
THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REMEHS WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties 2,009 3,821
RITERZFEWA Interest income from bank deposits 252 735
AR 7% & WA Service fee income 694 945
RS 17 B Government grants _ 424
Hit Others 359 217
3,314 6,142
7 Bk RERE 7 OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
—E-RE —E-NE
2025 2024
TER THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RELLHESN 2 W& Gain on early termination of lease contracts 1,197 395
BE X I s (F518) F58 Exchange gain (loss), net 575 (1,507)
HEWE - BE KRBz WE Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 254 98
HERMBARIZREZER Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiaries
(Mt&E25) (note 25) - (3,477)
2,026 (4,491)
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

FrieBiE R INCOME TAX CREDIT
e —F-NF
2025 2024
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$'000

BN E - & BRI Current tax — Outside Hong Kong

RAEEEE Provision for the year (292) (1,393)
BEFERERIR Under-provision for prior years - (2,440)
(292) (3,833)
EFERLIE (FfaF22) Deferred tax (note 22) 3,599 5,561
FriEfiK &R Income tax credit 3,307 1,728

REESEMAHFHFSEHEHE CEXKEEERE
2,000,000 Tt B R AE 328.25% M B R -EH - mBEB
2,000,000 7T K93 F B3 16.5% M R EE - FFE
MARFFEHEHENSEEER GG EEIR6.5%
N —HEGH - EERA > MAGFESHEFES
EMIPREBEHAECVERRMSLETEK
bt REREFE  EEBLEERNHBLARER
BT ERBERIR16.5% EHEBRBH - ARAK
EERAMEFELENE BELEERF SR ERS
A EBMIEEEIRY > MUENGE M ERERTIR
BEENEHEME -

RIEREREFEBE (TREREB ) REEFER
EBEREG  PEABKHELARMEFENRES
25% °

Annual Report 2025 4 4E

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of a qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
The Directors consider the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, Hong Kong Profits Tax for subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group did not have assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong or the assessable profits were

absorbed by tax losses for both years.
Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)

and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate

of Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

FrEHiEe (&)

TP F BT B S 732,000 FF T (FE 31,0008
70) {B{E 7300,00052 9 7t (1HE 1291,0005 7T ) Y FE
RHBAENFI3%EI%NBERREBHM MESS
HAREERENRLAR BE-_ZT_AFR_-F
“HE=A=1+—HLEEFE BRABFETHEIGS
iR e 48 e - FERR B UL A B9 % B 28 5600,000)2 9 7T
(1 7M582,0005% 7T) » 8 H600,0002 9 5t (FHER
582,000/ 7t ) K FE SR B a7l AR B EFL = 12% M B o

REMBEEER (BIERE) EE 2B B REREEE
BEE2BABERGdE REZE-ZE-_HF=A=+—
HLEFE  YRAEZHBARZERBER17% (=
ZEMEF D 17%) °

MRIFBGRABE  RAAKEEERAEERPEAL
ZHNELEE_ZZLF+T_A=T—HZBEEZ
amFMEH Z 2 IRIR10% 5 ZHARNE - ARAEE
FENECETBBEBEIMALZMBRAREEEE
B HETERFENBEAER KRB ER5% o
EERA AEBEEETREERDIRZERFA - T
DEM D IKZERBRAES 2 HBRIELTEFMEH
&1&7,039,000/& T (ZZE =M : 7,058,000/ ) °
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INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income above
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) 32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000)
but below MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and
thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 31
March 2025 and 2024, a special complementary tax
incentive was provided to the effect that the tax free
income threshold was MOP600,000 (equivalent to
HK$582,000) with profit above MOP600,000 (equivalent to
HK$582,000) being taxed at a fixed rate of 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction including Taiwan is
calculated at the rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the applicable tax
rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Taiwan is 17% (2024:
17%).

The Group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%
(unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of profits
generated after 31 December 2007 from the Group’s
foreign-invested enterprises in Mainland China. As all of
the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly and
wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a
reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the calculation of this
withholding tax. Deferred tax liabilities of HK$7,039,000
(2024: HK$7,058,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits since, in the opinion of the Directors,
these earnings are not intended to be distributed in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

8 INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the

BT AT S B H R T loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
—E-fE —E-WmEF
2025 2024
THET TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
PREE A B 1B Loss before taxation (59,860) (49,838)
BEHEMBARBAZREELBEN Notional tax at tax rates applicable to losses
BRBEGE2RERE in the tax jurisdictions concerned 9,566 9,415
AR H 2 B2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses (2,176) (1,743)
BAGFBBRAZHEZE Tax effect of non-taxable income 195 799
BEFERETR Under-provision in respect of prior years — (2,440)
AERREBHE 2R E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (4,510) (7,054)
FRAEHABEBEEZHESE Tax effect of tax losses utilised
during the year 436 2,955
RERAHIREREEZR BB E  Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised (204) (290)
BALAABAZHBEREEER Utilisation of deductible temporary differences
previously not recognised = 86
3,307 1,728
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

9 FAEBAE 9  LOSS FOR THE YEAR
FRAEESHER (FFA) THRE :

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging (crediting):

—E-HE —E-ME
2025 2024
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEIRA Staff costs
E=M<€ (FFEE10) Directors’ remuneration (note 10) 8,682 8,434
Hith & T A Other staff costs
HE HFMREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 45,992 55,439
REEFCR KT BIER Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 3,812 3,827
BETIRAHBE Total staff costs 58,486 67,700
RITBEZFE Interests on bank borrowings 3,428 2,919
HERBEZFR Interests on lease liabilities 2,269 1,497
BMEMARER Total finance costs 5,697 4,416
2 Gl Ea Auditors’ remuneration 750 800
M- BERRBINE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,781 13,649
FHESERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 25,699 22,502
BEEE GTAHEENS s 2R Impairment losses (included in cost of sales,
HER U RITER distribution and selling expenses and
HiEEMXA) : administrative and other operating
expenses) on:
- ME BERKZE — Property, plant and equipment 87 219
- FRAEEE — Right-of-use assets 3,385 2,893
REMEZHESTWAREE Rental income from investment properties
X H117,000% 5T less direct outgoings of HK$117,000
(ZZ=/4% : 77,0008 7T) (2024: HK$77,000) (1,892) (3,744)
BABA 2 FERE Cost of inventories recognised as an expense* 20,430 26,827
L ERARXIZBTERAEREETIRARTEMEREZ ¥ Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes

5,629,000 7T (ZZ =4 : 7,234,000/ 7T) * B
BRENTASBZSHINAMEIBIREZS

HABRES - in the respective total amounts disclosed separately in this

HK$5,629,000 (2024: HK$7,234,000) relating to staff costs
and depreciation, in which these amounts are also included

note for each of these expenses.

132 Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B B 4 W & R 2 7 Annual Report 2025 44 #

N



A 7 S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

10 EERFETHAEME 10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
BEES (BREETHAR) 2ENHEMABE TN The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors,
T : including the chief executive, are as follows:
BE-Z-_RF=-A=1t—-HLFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

bl =413
REWER L3N
Salaries, 5Bl
allowances FB1ETEAL  Retirement
#€ and benefits Discretionary scheme ot
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITES Executive directors
BRECE Mr. Chan - 6,030 - 18 6,048
ruzt Ms. Tsui - 3,582 - 18 3,600
R 2% Chan Sze Chun - 420 - 18 438

BIYKHITES  Independent non-executive

directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 - - _ 90
PR Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 = = = 90
MR Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 - - - 90
KREX Ng Lai Man, Carmen 90 - - - 90

360 10,032 - 54 10,446
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

10 EERFETHRAEME (&) 10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
BE_Z_WE=A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 March 2024
BN - R
REREA K
Salaries, BEEER
allowances BB Retirement
#£&  and benefits  Discretionary scheme Bt
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TET TER TET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BITES Executive directors
BRE&E Mr. Chan - 5,847 - 18 5,865
Rzt Ms. Tsui - 3,457 - 18 3,475
BB % Chan Sze Chun = 420 = 18 438

BIFHTEE  Independent non-executive

directors
REZ Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 - _ _ 90
REGE Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 - _ _ 90
BEHE Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 = - - 90
REX Ng Lai Man, Carmen 90 - _ _ 90

360 9,724 - 54 10,138
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

10 EERFTETHRAEMNE (& 10 DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

Fe RERBEVENEEOESREZEEYEZ
mEHE 1,764,000 T (ZZ =W : 1,704,00078

JL) °

RTESCHBRANKSEREECEERERE
WRESSHE -

REETRARRRZERTHRAS @ RN EAMFTE
ZHECERRERETBZTHRAESRERB2ME -

EXRRBTESHEEREEREERQRAREE
EEBAMEERRE2ME -

IR ITEES M EAREHEESH
RERB2ME -

RMEFER  AEEMEXTME FESHERBE
WEMBAREFESAMBRFE B L HEEBEE - F
N HITEESREREEEREF 2SS 2585
360,000/ 75 (ZEZIU4 : 360,000587T)  IEMIEE
ER WEBIIATEEREEMAHE o

MR-B-=F=F=+—H REXBLEZEAXR
ATBYFHITES BT =FHA—HBEM -

(continued)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of HK$1,764,000 (2024: HK$1,704,000) which
represents the market rental value of own properties

provided to Directors.

The discretionary bonuses to the Directors are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by

the board of directors.

Mr. Chan is also the chief executive of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the independent non-executive

directors shown above were for their services as Directors.

During both years, no emoluments was paid by the Group
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. During the
year, the executive director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun has
waived his emoluments amounted to HK$360,000 (2024:
HK$360,000). None of the independent non-executive

directors has waived any emoluments in both years.

On 31 March 2023, Dr. Ng Lai Man Carmen has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the

Company with effect from 1 April 2023.
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

11 EEESHMEAL 11 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
AumesMEALH WU (ZE-NEF : WU ES Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
ZHEE R I10EEESE - Hp = (ZZT W& : (2024: two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
SU)ATZMESEBEMT ¢ in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

the other three (2024: three) individuals are as follows:

—E-RE —E-_NE

2025 2024

THET THERT

HK$’000 HK$'000

e EERBEYERN Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,012 5,192

BB TE AL Discretionary bonuses 412 403

RINEHEIH X Retirement scheme contributions 54 54

5,478 5,649
ZE=NU(ZE-EF =) MEeRa AT ZMEET The emoluments of the three (2024: three) individuals with

JEER : the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
AH
Number of individuals

—E-HE —EME

2025 2024

1,000,0017& 5t —1,500,000% 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 2 2

3,000,001 7t — 3,500,000 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 1

12 RE 12 DIVIDENDS

RBE-Z-AFR-Z-NF=A=+—-HLFE No dividend was paid or proposed to the ordinary
HAR - 30 M A 1 R B IR IR SRR Y 2 B K AE AT AR shareholders of the Company during the years ended 31
B REREHREN FEIKEE(ARE March 2025 and 2024, nor has any dividend been

proposed since the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

13 BRESR 13 LOSS PER SHARE
RABHEEANEBEEREREEDRE LT HET The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
g the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
—E-RE —E-NE
BE Loss 2025 2024
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AU ESREABEZFRNER Loss for the year for the purposes of
calculating basic loss per share (56,546) (48,100)
S —E-E
vk 4= Number of shares 2025 2024
TR TR
000 ‘000
AUGtEBREREE 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
=R INEFIHE for the purpose of calculating basic loss
per share 287,930 287,930

HRAQXRAMEFELEETARBFEN 2EBR
R BT EL5)GRIEFRERE -

Diluted loss per share is

not presented as the Company

does not have any dilutive potential ordinary share for both

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

14 YE - BERREURREYE 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
& BE
%E EER
AR ESIER BREEE
KtFERZ RAE
THREEY Furniture,
Land and fixtures, n% BE
buildings computer SET- 5
held for IX%E and office HENE  Sub-total of
own use R#H  equipment %8 property, RENR
carried at Plant and and motor Leasehold plant and Investment ast
fair value machinery vehicles  improvements equipment properties Total

TER TER TERL TER TER TER TET
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000

HASRfEE Cost or valuation:
RZEZ=f£RmA-A At 1 April 2023 329,792 1,062 21,037 16,926 368,817 226,190 595,007
ERHE Exchange adjustment (1,832) (40) (123) (140) (2,135) (1,292) (3,427)
EE Additions - 54 107 2,707 2,668 - 2,868
HRENEEANE  BERR Transfer from investment properties
to property, plant and equipment 70,647 - - - 70,647 (70,647) -
HE /s Disposalsiwrite-off - - (761) (2,426) 3,187) - (3,187)
HENBE A (HE25) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 25) (31,469) - - - (31,469) - (31,469)
EfREM Deficit on revaluation (16,269) = - = (16,269) = (16,269)
B ERHEEE Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation (12,348) - - - (12,348) - (12,348)
REBEZEEADABRD Decrease in fair value recognised
in profit or loss - - - - - (16,136) (16,136)
RZE-ME=B=1-AR At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024
“E_MEMA-A 338,521 1,076 20,260 17,067 376,924 138,115 515,039
BHA Exchange adjustment (230) (10) (27) (70) (337) (265) (602)
gE Additions = 52 1,020 1,825 2,897 = 2,897
e/ Disposals/write-off = (167) (3,427) (357) (3,951) = (3,951)
EREH Deficit on revaluation (28,247) = = = (28,247) - (28,247)
B ERHERHTE Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation (12,450) - - - (12,450 - (12,450)
RERCERIDAERD Decrease in fair value recognised
in profit or loss = = = - - (8,352) (8,352)
R-E-HE=fA=1-H At 31 March 2025 297,594 951 17,826 18,465 334,836 129,498 464,334
e Representing:
KA Cost = 951 17,826 18,465 37,242 = 37,242
& Valuation 297,594 - - - 297,594 129,498 427,092

297,504 951 17,826 18,465 334,836 129,498 464,334
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

B B
%E EKR
WA B3I BRZER
BEBRZ RAE
THREEY Furniture,
Land and fixtures, n% BE
buildings computer RRE M
held for IE%E and office BEWE  Sub-total of
own use R#H  equipment %6 property, RENE
carried at Plant and and motor Leasehold plant and Investment @zt
fair value machinery vehicles  improvements equipment properties Total
TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEx TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HERAE: Depreciation and impairment:
RZE-=%#MmE-A At 1 April 2023 = 1,030 19,536 15,908 36,474 = 36,474
EiAE Exchange adjustment - (38) (121) (134) (293) - (293)
AEERE Charge for the year 12,348 1 333 957 13,649 - 13,649
RERCERRAESSE Impairment losses recognised
(ftzE15) in profit or loss (note 15) = = = 219 219 = 219
HE /i Disposals/write-off - - (761) (2,426) (3,187) - (3,187)
EfbEE Elimination on revaluation (12,348) - - - (12,348) - (12,348)
RZZ-MEZB=+-AK  At31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024
“E-MEMA-A - 1,003 18,987 14,524 34,514 = 34,514
EXHE Exchange adjustment = (10) (12) (22) (44) - (44)
REEHE Charge for the year 12,450 26 560 1,745 14,781 = 14,781
RB&EZEERRERE Impairment losses recognised
(WzE15) in profit or loss (note 15) - - - 87 87 = 87
e/ Disposals/write-off = (167) (3,427) (357) (3,951) = (3,951)
BfERHE Elimination on revaluation (12,450) - - - (12,450) - (12,450)
RZE-HF=fA=1+-H At 31 March 2025 - 852 16,108 15,977 32,937 - 32,937
REFE: Net book value:
RZE-HF=fA=1+-H At 31 March 2025 297,594 99 1,718 2,488 301,899 129,498 431,397
R-E-ME=A=1-H At 31 March 2024 338,521 73 1,273 2,543 342,410 138,115 480,525

RZZE-HF=A=+—H8  EREZEA115,660,000
BT (ZZZIUE 1 111,100,0008 7T) 2EB B2
THRBREYRREVECHBTEEERER(R

FizE21) °
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As at 31 March 2025, land and buildings held for own use

and investment properties with carrying amounts of
HK$115,660,000 (2024: HK$111,100,000) in aggregate

were pledged against bank borrowings (see note 21).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

14 PE- -BERREURKREWE (18) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

AEENEZARETE
R-ZE-HFER-ZF-_MNF=ZA=+—H FEEY
EZARBEDNRBEAEEYHREECBLSERSE
EYEGEMTRAIEMTERAGR-_Z-2FK
“E_NF=A=+-HETZHEAEEMSE -
REEMHEBEYENLAER  AEENERTHRER
EBEaftEMAREENGEERLRAAETENE
A o

REBEBR  AERENERERAAABSENERF
BHEIIWT :

PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

The fair value of the Group’s properties as at 31 March
2025 and 2024 were arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 by Centaline
Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the
Group. In determining the fair value of the relevant
properties, the Group’s senior executive management has
discussion with the valuer on the appropriate valuation

techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

Details of the Group’s properties and information about the
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

il

A

4

N A
>
m m

ft

Fair value as
E=4& at 31 March

Level 3 2025
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEMAAETE Recurring fair value measurement
REW Investment properties:
BB Hong Kong 18,200 18,200
R A Mainland China 111,298 111,298
BFEBRZLhREEY Land and buildings held for own use:
BB Hong Kong 280,300 280,300
9 it Mainland China 17,294 17,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Z-RF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

R=—F=—MF
=R=+—-H
ZDnE
Fair value as
F=W at 31 March
Level 3 2024
FTHET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEMAALETE Recurring fair value measurement
REWE Investment properties:
=B Hong Kong 21,000 21,000
==l Nvnpii] Mainland China 117,115 117,115
FEBRZLRESEY Land and buildings held for own use:
B Hong Kong 320,500 320,500
F A Mainland China 18,021 18,021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

14 PE -BERZBEURKREYE (&) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

rEBYEZARETE(F) Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties
(continued)

BE_Z-_AF=RA=1t-BLFE F=REHEH During the year ended 31 March 2025, there were no

ABEE (ZZ2-WF  RhEREZ —EBFER A transfer into or out of Level 3 (2024: one land and

THREEYEBEEMBARMBEHE=& - &F buildings held for own use in Mainland China has been

RHfEE25) ° transferred out of Level 3 through the disposal of

subsidiaries, as disclosed in note 25).

BEARAHE
[SPN ¢
HERZE Significant
Valuation unobservable & [H
techniques inputs Range
REBZREWHE-T% HELEE REEYES -20.3%%-0.6%
it 2 a8 (&) (Z2=mF:
-18.6%%-3.3%)
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison Premium (discount) -20.3% to -0.6%
— Industrial approach on quality of the  (2024: -18.6% to -3.3%)
buildings
REBZREME-BHX BEELEE REEYES 24.7%ZE14.3%
Bl 2 %18 (&) (ZEZF
-47.4%%E28.4%)
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison Premium (discount) 24.7% to 14.3%
— Commercial approach on quality of the  (2024: -47.4% to 28.4%)
buildings
RPBER 2 REME-TX WABE R CEN S 3.0%
(ZZ2ZMF :3.0%)
Investment properties in Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 3.0%
— Industrial approach (2024: 3.0%)
RPBER 2 REY R —BE % LN X7 AR x 4.1%
(ZEZMF : 4.0%)
Investment properties in Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 4.1%
— Commercial approach (2024: 4.0%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

14 V% BERREURREWE (&) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
REBYWEZAARETE (&)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

EXARTEER

BARE

HERZE Significant
Valuation unobservable & [
techniques inputs Range
RABERE 2RENE-E= WAE AL E BERfx 1.9%
(ZF=MF 1 1.9%)
Investment properties in Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 1.9%

— Residential approach (2024: 1.9%)
ReEEALZRENE—EE D ONC N | EAf® 1.7%
(ZF=MF :1.7%)

Investment properties in Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 1.7%

— Residential approach (2024: 1.7%)
REABFEFERZLHREEY T EERLEBE REENES -28.4%Z5.9%

Land and buildings held for own use

Direct comparison

R 2R E (&)

Premium (discount)

(=ZF=m&F:
-18.6%Z6.1%)
-28.4% to 5.9%

in Hong Kong - Industrial approach on quality of the ~ (2024: -18.6% to 6.1%)
buildings

REBRHEERZIHREEY-FE BEELEBE MEENES -16.9%£14.9%

R 2 B8 (%) (ZEZmEF:

Land and buildings held for own use in Hong Kong

Direct comparison

Premium (discount)

-11.7%223.2%)
-16.9% to 14.9%

— Residential approach on quality of the (2024: -11.7% to 23.2%)
buildings

RPEBEARESEAER T REBE) B =8 354973 PERNEE -5.5%Z-1%

R 2B E (&) (Z2-mEF

Land and buildings held for own use in Mainland
China - Commercial

Annual Report 2025 4 4E

Direct comparison
approach

Premium (discount)
on quality of
the buildings

100 ==11025)
-5.5% to -1%

(2024: -10.0% to -1.0%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

14 PE- -BERREURKREWE (18) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

FEENEZ D RETE (B

UREBRTEAMBFFERAZLBREZEY Z AR
EBENZ2ZHALERNFLBRNEEEE  ZAMTS
BEEEEE -

RENEZDAEDIOZZERBEHETFLRNES
i RARTSEEREE R()VEREEERELE
CHEREBEAEBWUABRBERNCMEE -

BEEEBEMERSERTE DS ERENER
HEENLER - EENERES  RETSBSHN
BERE HEBHIABETELA -

WABRMOERMERANEREREABREYWE
SHESER HRAX HEERUEMFLHAR - AR
BEFFEETSHESEEAEERBER HEXXRAE
BRI -

BE_Z_AF=A=1t—HLEFE BE+EFEH
2T REBEYESE 2 B E5 428,247,000/ T

“ZT U E5#16,269,00058 0) RE M2 TGS
R o L2 BEE Az it R EBEYIZE B KA
BEITESE  R=E-AFE=A=+—A2ZKHA
B4 %42,613,000/ Jt (ZZ =& : 44,141,00058
JT) °

BE_Z_AF=A=1T—"HLEFE BREVEAIR
BEEBESE ZE188,352,0008 T (ZEWF : &
816,136,000/ 7T) E REBRER °
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PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties
(continued)

The fair value of land and buildings held for own use
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China is determined
on an open market value basis, by making reference to the

comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality.

The fair value of investment properties is determined (i) on
an open market value basis, by making reference to the
comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality; or (ii) by
capitalising the current rent derived from the existing
tenancies with the provision for any revisionary income

potential.

The premium or discount used in direct comparison
approach is specific to the building compared to the recent
sales. Higher premium or lower discount for higher quality

buildings will result in a higher fair value measurement.

The capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation
approach has been adjusted for the expected market rental
growth, occupancy rate, quality and location of the
building. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the market rental value and negatively

correlated to the capitalisation rate.

Revaluation deficit of HK$28,247,000 (2024: deficit of
HK$16,269,000) arising from revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use is recognised in other
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 March
2025. Had the above land and buildings held for own use
been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have been
HK$42,613,000 (2024: HK$44,141,000) at 31 March 2025.

The loss arising from changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$8,352,000 (2024: loss of HK$16,136,000)
is recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
March 2025.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

15 EAREE 15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HEWE HEWE
-ZER —-WAZE
Leased Leased
properties — properties — At
retail shop office Total
FHET FTART FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B Cost:
MRZEZ=%FMA—H At 1 April 2023 160,122 8,449 168,571
fE AR Exchange adjustment (454) (254) (708)
e Additions 24,171 243 24,414
HEERTIBET Modification of lease term 19,026 - 19,026
REZ JJ:*HEA,%’J Early termination of lease contracts (1,250) (544) (1,794)
HESHER Expiration of lease contracts (40,974) (2,272) (43,246)
R=Z=ME=A=1—-HRK At 31 March 2024 and
—E-MEMA-—A 1 April 2024 160,641 5,622 166,263
E A Exchange adjustment (85) (88) (173)
e Additions 11,302 90 11,392
HERFTIBET Modification of lease term 7,676 1,392 9,068
REAILHAEARY Early termination of lease contracts (4,985) (503) (5,488)
HESHER Expiration of lease contracts (15,904) = (15,904)
R-ZBE-_RFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2025 158,645 6,513 165,158
HERRE : Depreciation and impairment:
R-B-=%mA—A At 1 April 2023 145,079 8,384 153,463
BN RE Exchange adjustment (298) (253) (551)
REERE Charge for the year 22,410 92 22,502
REREBRIHEEE Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss 2,893 = 2,893
REZILAERY Early termination of lease contracts (1,250) (544) (1,794)
HESHNER Expiration of lease contracts (40,974) (2,272) (43,246)
R-EBE_ME=A=+—-AAK At 31 March 2024 and
“E-_NEWPA—H 1 April 2024 127,860 5,407 133,267
R Exchange adjustment (60) (30) (90)
REERE Charge for the year 25,520 179 25,699
REZERIARERE Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss 3,385 - 3,385
RERILEESH Early termination of lease contracts (3,093) (498) (3,591)
HESHER Expiration of lease contracts (15,904) - (15,904)
R-EB-RE=A=+-AH At 31 March 2025 137,708 5,058 142,766
AR [EFHE Net carrying value:
R-E-_HF=R=+-—H At 31 March 2025 20,937 1,455 22,392
REZEZNFE=R=+—H At 31 March 2024 32,781 215 32,996
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

15 ERREE (&) 15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

e —F-DNF

2025 2024

TER TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

EHHEEAERX Expense relating to short-term leases 3,570 4,286

NtEHERBERAEEZ Variable lease payments not included in the

AEEENR measurement of lease liabilities 3,973 8,330

HEZRERNARE Total cash outflow for leases 37,272 41,862
RREFE AEEREEKEERRAREAE T For both years, the Group leases factory buildings, retail
EE BEARSEERRLAZE - HEGNITL—FZ shops, department store counters and offices for its
EFEMEERE HHNRENREERE  TEES operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
BETRMNIERRGEYS, - REEHEE R o s E of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
BzHRE  AEBEASHNEESTEBEES N THIT basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
ZHARR o conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the

length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which

the contract is enforceable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease
payments terms or contain variable lease payment terms
that are based on certain percentage of sales and minimum
annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease term.
Some variable payment terms include cap clauses. The
payment terms are common in retail shops in Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan where the Group
operates. The amount of fixed and variable lease payments
paid/payable to relevant lessors for the years ended 31
March 2025 and 2024:

For the year ended 31 March 2025

B E 4 & CE-ShEN NRBE
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
FER TER FER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WEASEENRZEZEE Retail shops without variable

lease payments 2,244 - 2,244

REAJFHEENRZZERE Retail shops with variable lease
payments 26,791 3,973 30,764
29,035 3,973 33,008

BE-Z-_NF=ZRA=+—-BLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

ERAEEN AR R
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
FERT FERT FERT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
VEASHENRZETERE Retail shops without variable

lease payments 848 - 848

REUEHEHENRZEERE Retail shops with variable lease
payments 29,555 8,330 37,885
30,403 8,330 38,733
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

15 EHAREE (&) 15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

ERTECRERNERY BV EAHEERENT
EEFEENARAARERS - AMARBETRE
SO {E TS G O L S MR o

BB FE A

HRAEEZEERRAXE  AEEEEER AT
ERETR  UHHABEAREEURDE BER
R 2 AT UL B RR A TR E R AL o

EHReEAENARESENREMFAEETEME
EoZstEERARSREEA  FHEBANNEELRE
EEEEME FESRSELENRKBEEHRN
HHEE IR ZE_HF=A=1+—HHKKRHA
WEI3.5% (ZF-MUF : 13.5%) BEE - FHEE

AES-HIZBRABEENR  HEBEREE
SEUBAERRUREEEH DT SRRENERME
E o

REFHER  FEEEEEBRAETHSELEN
WA El £ BRAEREE - REAEETE  RE
EE_HF=ZA=t-HLFECHEAREER
NE BERIZEZREEIIBIAFIEE
3,385,000/ T (==& = M4 :2,893,0005& t) &
87,0008 7t (ZZE =Y : 219,000/ T) °
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The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms
is that higher rental costs are incurred by retail shops with
higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
continue to represent a similar proportion of retail shops

sales in future years.

Impairment assessment

Due to adverse performance of the Group’s retail
operations, the management of the Group concluded there
was indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of relevant right-of-use

assets and property, plant and equipment.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating units has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering the remaining lease term of each cash-generating
unit with a pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% (2024: 13.5%) as
at 31 March 2025. Another key assumption for the value in
use calculated is the budgeted gross margin, which is
determined based on each cash-generating units’ past
performance and management expectations for the market

development.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amounts of certain
cash-generating units are lower than the carrying amounts.
Based on the value in use calculation, additional
impairment of HK$3,385,000 (2024: HK$2,893,000) and
HK$87,000 (2024: HK$219,000) has been recognised
against the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment, respectively during the year
ended 31 March 2025.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

EfNRE 16 DEPOSITS PAID
—EBE-HE —E_ME
2025 2024
THET FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HERHEMRE Rental and other deposits 13,672 18,281
W oBEARBEEZHER Less: Rental and other deposits classified as
Hiiz & Gt ABRKRRE current assets (included in trade and
H R (FizE18)) other receivables (note 18)) (8,413) (14,463)
5,259 3,818
7& 17 INVENTORIES
ZE-RHF “EoMmE
2025 2024
THERT FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
&A1 Raw materials 778 1,002
EHE Work in progress 299 477
SR Finished goods 25,674 25,794
26,751 27,273
e L2 AR K B2 HL A P LK 18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
s b
2025 2024
FTERT THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE W BR X Trade receivables 5,584 8,781
HERHEMRE Rental and other deposits 8,413 14,463
A FIE Prepayment 1,009 1,256
HL th & U FX Other receivables 2,848 4,145
17,854 28,645
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

18 EWERARKREMEWR (&) 18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

RE|BEBR  BBREAHMAESHRBERE ZEY
BRRZIRBROTANT

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

e —F-DNF

2025 2024

THET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

30H A Within 30 days 4,170 6,831
31HZ90H 31 to 90 days 463 1,513
91H£180H 91 to 180 days - 437
H#iB180H Over 180 days 951 -
5,584 8,781

FEWER R EHE R B BEF30E908 2 - XEEREE
BRI — S FH R EN 28

R-ZE-HF=A=1+—H0 AEEZEWERRE
fth FE UK TR B 3 FE U B B 5 2 &5 82 9 B 3162,00058 7T
(ZZ =4 : 291,000 7T) }%2,041,0008 T (==
Z WU 12,541,000 )  ZBEH A ARBEELERE
BEAFENZAT  HAXAAEERITESR
EERARTRPTES®RLZLIZRT » RAXTYIT
EEREEZBE -

ACE-RF=A=+—H8 st AXEBERKRIRE
#EBRTE{E972,00058 7T (ZZE =4 : 569,000/ 7T) Z
FEWERFEBER - AEBEW R ZELERITEEMIE
Ho - RBHESRED YE(ZZ-HNF  H)ER
HA9OH R UL L ©

B 28 U AR R e L A B WK Sz R (L AT A 1 B R B R
28 °
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Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the
invoice date. Further details on the Group’s credit policy

are set out in note 28.

As at 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s trade
receivables and other receivables are balances of
HK$162,000 (2024: HK$291,000) and HK$2,041,000
(2024: HK$2,541,000), respectively, due from a related
party, which is a company that Chan Pak Hei, Billy, the son
of Mr. Chan, chairman and executive director of the
Company and Ms. Tsui, an executive director of the
Company, and the brother of Chan Sze Chun, an executive

director of the Company, have significant influence over it.

As at 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s trade
receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$972,000 (2024: HK$569,000) which are past due. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Out of the past due balances, none of them (2024: nil) has

been past due 90 days or more.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other

receivables are set out in note 28.

Annual Report 2025 4 4¢ #t



A 7 S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 BNRAREMENSRK

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E_RHE —E-NE

2025 2024

THERT FTHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE A BR X Trade payables 3,705 5,075

B lizs Deposit received 2,007 4,553

st &M Accrued charges 12,889 11,434
FE 155 B /B8 2 B0 2 AR AR SR SR IE Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder

of a subsidiary 1,800 1,800

H At FE 4T FR Other payables 3,453 3,517

23,854 26,379

RZBE-HF=A=1+—8B st AEBHERARBSR
B & #E576,0008 T (ZZ =MW : 600,000/87T) °
ERAHEARFERRRREARER RERLE
EEZERE -

=
H
If
i
2t
e
e
3

A E 2 BN IR Z R DA

As at 31 March 2025, included in accrued charge is
provision for long service payments of HK$576,000 (2024:
HK$600,000). The amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and

has no fixed repayment terms.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

wmE trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—E-RE —E-NE
2025 2024
TR T
HK$’000 HK$’000
308 Within 30 days 375 583
31HZ90H 31 to 90 days 79 1,243
#8990 H Over 90 days 3,251 3,249
3,705 5,075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

20 HEEE 20 LEASE LIABILITIES
e —F-NF
2025 2024
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BAESEE: Lease liabilities payable:
—FR Within one year 25,215 25,334
BE-—FETBEBWE Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years 5,886 14,483
BEMEETBBRE Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years 664 3,056
31,765 42,873
B RBEBET IR Less: Amount due for settlement within
BAR1I2EARES 225 12 months shown under current
liabilities (25,215) (25,334)
ERBEBET R Amount due for settlement after 12 months
RI2ERARENZEHE shown under non-current liabilities 6,550 17,539
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

“ZE-RFE=RA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

Be 21 BORROWINGS
—E-RfE —F-NE
2025 2024
THET TEx
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITEX Bank overdrafts 9,515 8,775
EREBBER Trust receipt loans - 5,450
HitEHRTEE Other short-term bank borrowings 57,463 36,500
66,978 50,725
FELARRTERERBERR All the above bank borrowings were secured
AR THIHREE : and repayable as follows:
BEREREBEKRREBEZRTSI The carrying amounts of bank loans that
= [@ﬁtzfﬁﬁﬁ X2 BREE contain a repayment on demand clause but
(B &E) repayable (Note):
—F R Within one year 66,978 50,725

HraE - BARTRIEER G EETE

ERARAMMAEE X
EFAEARIREERR 2HE -

R-BE-HF=F=+—H AEBZRTEEINU
BRAEAE115,660,0008mt (ZF =MW & :
111,100,000 7T) 2HEE AL REEYURKRE
MEZEERTRARANTREZIERERKR

HZERITEEANEETRAQTMBE L ARA
EEHBRRLEREE2RE REERKLZTH
BEBTESHBERARRAZEARRE » UKEBF
FETERARAARO ZRBEE - HAKEERE

BRE AARBEREELARITEE - AKEEH
ERAGETRERE2EN FHREERBESR

mEEE-DHBERRME28 - R=FE-HF=A
=t—-R UEERAFRAAEMARITEEZRZE (=
T HE) o
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Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect

of any repayment on demand clause.

As at 31 March 2025, the bank borrowings of the Group
were secured by legal charges over land and buildings held
for own use and investment properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$115,660,000 (2024: HK$111,100,000)
and guaranteed by the Company.

The above variable-rate bank borrowings are subject to the
fulfilment of certain covenants relating to the financial
position ratios of a Company’s subsidiary and the Group.
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui shall remain as the Directors and
the largest shareholders of the Company and shall comply
with negative pledge obligation in relation to the shares of
the Company. If the Group were to breach the covenants
the above secured bank borrowings would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 28. As at
31 March 2025, none of the covenants relating to the

secured bank borrowings had been breached (2024: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

22 EEFFEHR(EE)RE 22 DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES
RAFEEFREMBRARERZBELEMEH (BE) The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities
EEZEARBOIREBEZFHMOT : recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position and the movements during the year are as follows:

FESRER
HERHE
Depreciation AER
in excess of FEEH
the related EffnE Unrealised kAt ERELE HERE
depreciation Revaluation profits on Write-down Right-of-use Lease #st
allowances of properties inventories o inventories assets liabilities Total
TER T Tin TEn TER TR T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE-_=£MA-H At 1 April 2023 (restated)

(EE7) (12,371) 106,067 (581) (856) 1,616 (1,616) 92,259
EXAE Exchange adjustment - (213) - - - - (213)
a9 GEA) Nk (Credited) charged to

(KizE8) profit or loss (note 8) (1,327) (3,799) (185) (155) 1,588 (1,683) (5,561)
BfERE A Credited to reserves - (2,927) - = = - (2,927)
I E R (HrE25) Release upon disposal (note 25) 1,654 (8,803) - - - - (7,149)
RZ2-DE At31 March 2024 and

ZA=t-BER 1 April 2024

“Z-MEMA-A (12,044) 90,325 (766) (1,011) 3,204 (3,299) 76,409
EXHE Exchange adjustment - 47) - - - - @)
Bae G Nk (Credited) charged to

(FirEs) profit or loss (note 8) (1,213) (1,454) (350) 280 (1,631) 769 (3,599)
BRI Credited to reserves - (4,668) = = = = (4,668)
REBZHEZA=F-R  At31 March 2025 (13,257) 84,156 (1,116) (731) 1,573 (2,530) 68,095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

22 RIEFEHR (BEE) BB (& 22 DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued)

RELY  BETEEFRSHEERSBECRIKMRR
RIKGE - M BREMS - AREZELEFSHEER
DT :

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

—E_HEF —E-E
2025 2024
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REEMBRRERER 2 Net deferred tax assets recognised in the

BEFESHEEFE consolidated statement of financial position (1,237) (323)

REEMBRRERER 2 Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
ELEREHEEFH consolidated statement of financial position 69,332 76,732
68,095 76,409

AERANEBEREETEELEBEEFERZARS=
FRNLEE Z2FTE6,099,0008 5t (ZF =M F :
10,019,000 t) - IBELXEEFER2ERZH
F R E 2 FHIE50,097,0008 T (ZF =MW F
45,508,000 T) R HEAFEFERZ2EREZ T+
FREHE ZHIE3,160,0008 T (=T =M F :
3,459,000 ) - REBEREHR KR M > 6258
339,072,000 7t (= Z =94 : 355,560,0005& 7t) I
BRI o

ATE_HE=A=1+—8  FEERYE BEK
REZHER14,193,0008 T (Z 2 =W F :
16,537,000/8 ) AT KN ERZE - HRTAKATRER
ERBEFME RN REZRFRIN A RALER
FREREZERARLEMEREE -

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
HK$6,099,000 (2024: HK$10,019,000) which can be
carried forward up to three years from the year in which
the loss was incurred, an amount of HK$50,097,000 (2024:
HK$45,508,000) which can be carried forward up to five
years from the year in which the loss was incurred and an
amount of HK$3,160,000 (2024: HK$3,459,000) which can
be carried forward up to ten years from the year in which
the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of
HK$339,072,000 (2024: HK$355,560,000) does not expire

under the current tax legislation.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has deductible temporary
differences in relation to impairment of property, plant and
equipment of HK$14,193,000 (2024: HK$16,537,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

23 RA 23 SHARE CAPITAL
EEREBITRAE Authorised and issued share capital
—BCEHF —EFoNmF
2025 2024
R 4 % B R HE
Number ¢ Number 5
of shares Amount of shares Amount
TR TERT TR THET
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
EE Authorised:
EREEOIBITZEER Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
ERTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
REDRRER At beginning of the year and at
end of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880
EZERFAEAEEERTKRER2RE - BEALQH The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
ERLERTE-—ZRER - FESEREALA Z dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
NHEEZRREES - one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All

ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.
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c BIBPBEEFE EEREERARESERK
)\,ZS%F‘]ZZHEHQW BESRAERWA LR%30,000
B BEEHEZHARTDINKERE -

TEABZMEARCSEETRFER 2 REM
REtd - LEMBRARAARTENLESRERF T2
ETHEELREZT MR - HARDNERE -
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BIRAESHRPEE 2 REMRRTE -
RSRREMRATE 2 EERS
FRARFRETERNEELE TRIEE 2BEAR
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RiES
o Itk Bff 8
HEr & B8 2 6%ME
S N

EEY=cho
NAEA
4t
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E =

REEKFTE 2 HRRELRRNEZAMER - HEAMH
FEt BB 2 HF BRI E -
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24

Z-RF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group participates in a MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The subsidiaries in Mainland China participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local government.
These subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
certain prescribed rates of the relevant Mainland China
employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions to the

scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme
governed by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This
subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total salaries of the
participating employees who have chosen to participate in
the defined contribution scheme, the contribution deposited
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour

Insurance of Taiwan.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred. Details of the

contribution scheme amount are disclosed in note 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

25 HEHE A A

25 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

R-ZZ=FHA=1H AEEHEELWBE L FHE
BEBRERAR (THE])  -HERAKNEBLARSER
RO BERQXA(TRE]D (RBEEEE] R
ERHzEEFENT :

On 30 May 2023, the Group disposed of a subsidiary, Busy
Win International Limited (“Busy Win”). The net assets of
Busy Win and its subsidiary, Ming Fung Garment
Manufacturing (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Ming Fung”)
(collectively referred to as “Busy Win Group”) at the date of

disposal were as follows:

FTHET
EWARIE : Consideration received: HK$’000
EWRERERAERE Cash received and total consideration received 22,396
—E-=
ERA=+H
30 May 2023
REBRFRZEERBED I Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control TERT
was lost: HK$’000
M- BERRZE Property, plant and equipment 31,469
EIEMEHRERE Deferred tax assets 1,654
H fth fE Ut FX Other receivables 7
H it A Other payables (6)
RERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents _x
EEEEFE Net assets disposed of 33,124
HEREEEZER Loss on disposal of Busy Win Group:
2 WK E Consideration received 22,396
EEEEFE Net assets disposed of (33,124)
HEZBREKBHELHBEHRVEEEE  Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve
upon disposal of Ming Fung to profit or loss 7,251
HERIE Loss on disposal (3,477)
HEELEZRERAFHE Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
HeERE Cash consideration 22,396
HEHEZRERRAEEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of —
22,396

o {741,000 7T
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HE—

HEME AR (& 25
HEREEEREARTBEZEIERH LRSS
4,024,000/ 7T R W B (E##%528,773,000/8 7T
HEREEEMBEREEGFFEEALI M REEYE

B2 ELFSH&ER8,803,000/ T ©

KREHERH 26
FEEER/HBAA
THHEAE 2 B ARREAESREIINT :

Z-RF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Statutory reserve funds of HK$4,024,000 and property
revaluation reserve of HK$28,773,000 were transferred to
accumulated loss upon disposal of Busy Win Group.
Deferred tax liabilities of HK$8,803,000 relating to
revaluation of land and buildings held for own use was

reversed as a result of the disposal of Busy Win Group.

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor
Undiscounted lease payments receivable under

non-cancellable leases are as follows:

—ECEHF —T-NE

2025 2024

TER TERx

HK$’000 HK$’000

—FR Within one year 2,699 3,502
F£= In the second year 2,467 3,357
E=F In the third year 1,432 3,448
E P& In the fourth year 307 1,958
FHEF In the fifth year 205 -
7,110 12,265

FEHE-—ROSAP—FELF - FERKEHEY
TaEEREHEE -

Annual Report 2025 4 4E

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to seven

years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

27 EsERERE 27 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

FEBEREACEEERDREAEEENEER
BEECLEEERE  KtMBEBRRERKEREEZ
EmRBRBEERISGERFIESHRE  BEARR
RlEE R A H AN E TR o

AEEERY EHNEHAEEAERRE  UESRKR
REHKAEHE RS EEKTERFHERRR T
ENSmERREZEDREFE TEREEHARENE
{EHERRBERFE -

REZB-0F  AFEREA-ZT_NF2RE  BER
HEREBUER VRS KTELSRBESHE ©
REFIAZRRSKT  AEEARABRRTTFREZ
REEE  BITFRN  BEFEXRERLEEE
LA IR &K F o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B B 4 M A R 2 7

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

During 2025, the Group’s strategy in monitoring its capital
structure, which was unchanged from 2024, was to
maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its liquidity
requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the cash level,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends payable to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or

sell assets to increase the cash level.
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BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

28 €@ ITHE 28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
SRITREZEH Categories of financial instruments
e —F-NF
2025 2024
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TMEE Financial assets
1 85 B AR Amortised cost 26,828 54,765
ERMAE Financial liabilities
1 55 A A Amortised cost 109,708 106,032
SRAREEEERBE Financial risk management objectives and policies

FE RBES FEXREBERDEAREEEL 2
EREBBRPELE - AEBAAE2ZEABRRA
SEEREZSRARMEKAMBEREEBRRRIEH
MR T e

=B /2 R B E

FEBZFEERBEIEREBKIRNK - HtbEYRK -
RERBTHEER - AEELESHEAERRB A
FEIERER  UBEZSLREERBNEERR

AEEFHEESFIARERTEENSAEEHER
BHBLINBEREERBRAGEMHERRTRFTHRE
HEeRRAEHEEWREE -

Annual Report 2025 4 4E

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits and bank balances.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with these

financial assets.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

28 SWMIE(E) 28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

CREAREEEERBE(F)

= B E B R e B P14 (7
ZEHETEURSEEET  URE  TRFAE
AR - REEREERABYUERREBEA (EER
FERFHE BELARES EBRZEERR £
EEEEECERMMAEEEEFERSE CEFH
R H b B iR iE e - LARE R R ENER 3E 45 e W B B B 48
He b REBEHKR  AEEEEERNEEE
BIEBNTKREEHE AR AT RESHEELR
HRMERRE - AEBEREYRFEAEHLEFEE
B BHRELNERARENRREERE - A5
ERBERATENERRRNEREESBE &%
BEHEHFLRERAANBEEFR L2 EBEENRT
% - BWARKE AT E e & B35 A Al B 35k 2
METE B - RHEEBERTDRBEWIRRE
SAFEHMABERRENRMMGES  URBARERL
SR AN T BN AT 1S Y AT RE M E R (40 S BR (B 75
ABRERETXBREBERARNENRBARRRE
B)ELRAE AKEEEEEAZSAEMEERT
HHEAMNENRRARRES -
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

Retail sales are mainly on a cash basis, either in cash, debit
card or credit card payments. In order to minimise the
credit risk in regard of balances with trade receivables
debtors, which mainly consist of credit card institutions,
department stores and malls, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group applies simplified approach on trade
receivables to assess for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9. To
measure ECL of trade receivables at amortised cost, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its counterparties
and they are assessed individually by reference to past
default experience, current past due exposure of the
debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current financial
position. The ECL rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted global economy which
reflect the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate) that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used by
the management of the Group to assess both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.
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CREAREEEERBE(F)

= B R B R B (1)

FEW R (48)

EAFERRZEERRER BAHFHRERE
FFREEBIEERASMPEATRWRITRNES R
BoRENEEQARAREENERERNS A&
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28

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The credit risk on credit card receivables is limited because
the counterparties are banks or financial institutions with
high external credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies. For trade receivables due from department
stores and malls, the Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the credit quality of each customer prior to
engagement and defines individual credit limits
accordingly. Credit limits and scoring attributed to these
customers are reviewed annually. In addition, other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure timely
follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue balances. As
a result, the management considers that the Group’s credit
risk exposure to department stores and malls is significantly
reduced. As at the end of the reporting period, there were
no credit-impaired trade receivables (2024: nil).
Furthermore, the management of the Group considers that
the non-credit-impaired trade receivables are collectible
based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors, adjusted for forward-looking
information. The Directors are of the opinion that, except
for an impairment provision of HK$453,000 (2024: nil)
recognised for receivables from department stores and
malls, no further allowance for impairment on the

remaining trade receivables is considered necessary.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables. As at 31 March 2025, 18% (2024: 14%) of
trade receivables is due from the Group’s largest
counterparty and 55% (2024: 51%) of trade receivables is
due from the five largest counterparties. The management
of the Group closely monitors the subsequent settlement by

the counterparties.
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28 2@ IA (&) 28 Financial Instruments (continued)

TREAREEEERBE (A)

= B E B R e B P14 (7
BEBHEAEHAMEHEE
REMEWRUARBEEREMREMNS » ESREE
PHEETE BAEKRURFMEEERIFEATEMY
BR - ERHBEREHRN TR DM ETEBE o E
ERE FAEBEMERARERSNHREBEERILE
EXEEFERR REAEEEERE 2 - 2l
BURERE2AMEEBBELTEKX -

RITEHRTFRRE TEETRBSRUBEIREN
ERESHEE MESAARSERESHEEDN
FERRAE -

T EEZERE

R-B-_HE=F=+—HB AEEZRBAEEB
HAREBEEN66,931,0008 T (Z2 = £ :
24,456,000 L) cBE_ZET_HF=A=+—H1
FE AEEEELEEESRHEH3,518,0008 T (=
T_NF  EELKEERESRERNG,390,0008T) o R
“ECRFE=A=T—H AEEEFEZEERERES
EEBYHREEA4,724,0008 T (Z =M F :
23,558,000/ 7t) R AR E A IRITRLE £16,339,0007%
T (ZEZMF : 16,225,000/ T8) °©

FEBBRRAEHEERDESTE  UHERESE
FEARESMHE UENEREHZADEZTE -

TRETAEERBREHREMEEZHRTIINEH
BE - WAFTORTRRERE (BRETHE RS
BeHNEXE MEFEER  RBRSHPRERZ
BEFEZAMEXH) FEDTEE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B B 4 M A R 2 7

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised costs

For other receivables and rental and other deposits, the
Directors make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of significant balances based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The Directors believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. Based on assessment by the
management of the Group, the ECL for other receivables
and deposits is insignificant.

The bank balances are placed in various authorised
financial institutions either with high credit ratings or good
financial background and the Directors consider the credit
risk of such authorised financial institutions is low.

Liquidity risk

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$66,931,000 (2024: HK$24,456,000). For the year
ended 31 March 2025, the Group incurred in operating
cash outflows of approximately HK$3,518,000 (2024:
generated operating cash flows of approximately
HK$6,390,000). As at 31 March 2025, the total cash and
cash equivalents of HK$4,724,000 (2024: HK$23,558,000)
were held by the Group and unutilised bank facilities
amounted to approximately HK$16,339,000 (2024:
HK$16,225,000) were available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash outflows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period).
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28 €RITHE (&) 28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
SRREREERERBUR (F) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

MEE 2 /E B () Liquidity risk (continued)
ARESEHRTHTETERRMEREZEF As the Directors do not expect the banks would exercise
ZAREERIURMRZRITEERBR RS EERS the rights to demand repayment, the bank borrowings
&2 - Hilt > BRFRTEEMS > TRDBIBRR subject to repayment on demand clause are expected to be
BREBRHZITARFTERSRE  URMERA repayable based on the specific repayment terms. Hence,
TEARRDGER 2 BRERFIHRS R LR Z for these bank borrowings, the following tables show the
HEo contractual undiscounted cash outflows according to the

specific repayment terms and, separately, the impact to the
timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke

their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate

effect.
—E-RE
2025
ARARRAER

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—F#% MER

ME¥H BRER BEFR

ME BREEA More than ~ More than
Weighted R —%E®  1yearbut 2 years hut REE
average On Within ~ lessthan less than @z Carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amounts

TR TR TER TER TER TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

RREREBRIRR 2 Bank borrowings subject to

RITRE repayment on demand

clauses:

HiteHEE Other short-terms borrowings 4.94% - 70,392 - - 70,392 66,978
BRRSRE MR Trade and other payables TEA NA - 10,965 - - 10,965 10,965
HEaE Lease liabilities 5.64% = 26,224 6,060 678 32,962 31,765

- 107,581 6,060 678 114,319 109,708
REEFAZEREEEFE  Adjustments to disclose cash
RTERREREREZ flows on bank borrowings
HE based on lender's right to

demand repayment 66,978 (70,392) - - (3,414) -

as Total 66,978 37,189 6,060 678 110,905 109,708
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28 €WIA(#E) 28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
SRRAREEBEREE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
THEELERE (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
—2opE
2024
ANARRRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—F#& mEL
mE¥s BmER  BREER
FE  BEERA More than ~ More than
Weighted B 33 —&R  Tyearbut 2 years but REE
average On Within -~ lessthan less than @it Carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amounts

TER TER TER TiER TER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000

RRERBERARZBT  Bank borrowings subject to

&g repayment on demand

clauses:

HihEHEE Other short-terms borrowings 6.33% - 53,602 - - 53,602 50,725
B RS R B AR Trade and other payables TH#EF NA - 12,434 - - 12,434 12,434
HEER Lease liabilities 5.96% - 27,117 15,141 3,154 45,412 42,873

- 93,153 15,141 3,154 111,448 106,032
ﬁﬂiﬁ TAZEREEERE  Adjustments to disclose cash
RTRERERERTE L flows on bank borrowings
fﬂ% based on lender's right to
demand repayment 50,725 (53,602) - - (2,877) -
@5t Total 50,725 39,551 15,141 3,154 108,571 106,032
Fi =z Interest rate risk
AEENRERENZEAMEZHFIERITEERR The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
THSER - AEEBEBRERRKTRARFTME variable rate bank borrowing and bank balances. The
AFZEBHEENBEESEMEBEAERE R - B2 Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing the
BB ERRFEEENLLALEREEAEEER potential impact arising from any interest rate movements
BEEGE - based on interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
variable rates and ensure they are within reasonable range.
AEEZANXEBEIERBFEEHEAE - The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

variable rate financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-T-_AF=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and

financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

—BZEHE —EBopmEF
2025 2024
BRFI= BIRA =
Effective TER Effective TET
interest rate $’000 interest rate $'000
THIELHEE Variable rate financial liabilities
- & - Borrowings 3.40% £ to 6.01% £ to
5.67 % 66,978 6.70% 50,725
B E T (i)~ Sensitivity analysis

RZZB-HF=A=+—H  &EtRREEHD
SEMOEEZ MEMAETEREZEIZT
B AREEeBRBEEERBTEERRD
EIN%I112,00058 T (ZZ =M : 85,0008 7T) °

PRREDMER - RRRBE R ERITE
ZEMTAREFERTE  SEAERENRKR
BERRTBERERNFRLTE - HRAKE
YEFEARGREVBRRAUDREFEZEM
EETE HMEBINLBEZEESTARTR
MAREFERER EEERSR  HRFLRZE
RARERMEBEFEZRR SRBRESMEESR
M =mEbm S L ERRME o

As at 31 March 2025, it is estimated that a general
decrease/increase of 20 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by approximately HK$112,000
(2024: HK$85,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses that is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. The
analysis does not take into account exposure to fair
value interest rate risk arising from fixed rate
instruments as the Group does not hold any fixed rate
instruments which are measured at fair value in the
consolidated financial statements. In management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure

does not reflect the exposure during the relevant years.
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28 €W T E (&) 28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
SRRAREEBEREE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

BHm b Currency risk
HETRESRARENRRARRITESRAEEEEE Certain trade receivables and payables and bank balances
BRI E B UMM INEHE  BERASEEE I are denominated in foreign currencies other than the
BBz o AN B AT ESNE DB o AT EEE functional currency of the relevant group entities, which
EEEMERPE o R EEREE BN E R IME R o expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group

currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arises.

(i) FFR#EZ & B (i) Exposure to currency risk
FAEBUMNETENEREEREERRERK The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
MAREENT : denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end

of the reporting periods are as follows:

BE 8E&

Assets Liabilities
—E-FHF —E-_MEF —E-ERE —EF
2025 2024 2025 2024
FERT FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
X T Euros 5 - (321) (597)
BT Hong Kong dollars 64,179 68,615 (59,590) (61,068)
AR HE Renminbi 3 4 (1,676) (2,509)
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28 &®RIE(#) 28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

CREAREEEERBE(F) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

BEwmp (&) Currency risk (continued)

(i) BBEEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TREREEERNBERREFERRAR 25 The following table indicates the instantaneous change
MEZRERZBULEB o RREBER RN in the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
BEZHIBEE CERIECEREBEST that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
& o group entities have significant exposure at the end of

the reporting period had changed at that date,

assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

kS 2 —F-omF
2025 2024
Ex Ex
th BE&ER L BHREER
(F&) B 2 ER (T ¥) B 2itER
Increase (H9)  #miED) Increase (A9)  Bi(ED)
(decrease) Increase Increase (decrease) Increase Increase
in foreign (decrease)  (decrease) in in foreign (decrease)  (decrease) in
exchange inloss  accumulated exchange inloss  accumulated
rates after tax losses rates after tax losses
TARL THART TERL TARL
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Euros 10% 26 26 10% 50 50
(10%) (26) (26) (10%) (50) (50)
BT Hong Kong dollars 5% (192) (192) 5% (70) (70)
(5%) 192 192 (5%) 70 70
ARE Renminbi 5% 70 70 5% 105 105
(5%) (70) (70) (5%) (105) (105)
EEERS  HRFRAZEBARERREREE In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
2R BRESMHEEIIERRT S LER unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
_M% o as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure

during the relevant years.

AS -] Fair values
REERAATTEZESRM I AEREENR -2 All financial instruments that are measured at amortised
THERZECNEZA=+-HZAAETES cost are carried at amounts not materially different from

BEREE2SHYE- their fair values as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.
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29 FEFBEERSH 29 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

BE-_Z-HF=A=+—HLEE x£ERZE
EHERAEIT L HEZTHE FAREE
11,392,000/ 7t (== =94 : 24,414,000/ 7t) K
B E1E10,544,0008 Tt (== =M F : 23,967,000/
) AR ERBEMBERER - b REERER
REEBIT D RIERAEAEEERHEERARFI, 068,000
BT (ZEZMME 1 19,026,000 7T) 8,968,000/
JT(ZZEZHE : 18,822,000/87T) °

30 BBMAEXB &
RZEREUBRREMBLARE XS R iR
o REBFYTHERBEBRLS 2XS :

(@ EBEREBATRZXS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group entered into
new lease arrangements in respect of retail stores and office.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$11,392,000
(2024: HK$24,414,000) and HK$10,544,000 (2024:
HK$23,967,000) respectively were recognised at the
commencement of the leases. Furthermore, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$9,068,000 (2024: HK$19,026,000) and HK$8,968,000
(2024: HK$18,822,000), respectively, in relation to lease

modification during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party

transactions:

(@) Transactions with related companies

—E-RE —E-_NE

2025 2024

THERT THET

HK$’000 HK$'000

SHER 1 IR & Sales of fashion apparel 167 1,490
EIREE2HEREX Rental expense for staff quarter = (560)
REMEZHEBA Rental income from investment properties = 198
PR 7% & Uk A Service fee income 726 945
R &R X Service fee expense (385) (238)
B B R 5] AR & Purchase of fashion apparel (8) (2,631)

HEAMAR (ZARATEEBAESR REKSE
CEEREREBEHRNERLE)ITLZEE
HEWA - HEHX  REBWARBRBERX
DBETHFHERR ZFREE -
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Sales, rental income, rental expense, service fee
income and service fee expense with related
companies, which were controlled or significantly
influenced by the Company’s key management
personnel and/or their close family members, were at

terms mutually agreed by the parties concerned.
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30 BEMAXRE ek (E) 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES (continued)

by TEEEAEHE
ITREBAEME GEMEI0MBREINTFAR
ATES R (TRERRMEEEEEZ

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,

representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive

BEMEA))MOT : directors excluding the benefits in kind regarding the
provision of a rental free quarter, as disclosed in note
10, is as follows:

—E-RE —E-NE

2025 2024

FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

EHESREAR Short-term employee benefits 8,268 8,020

HBZEEESERN Post-employment benefits 54 54

8,322 8,074
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31 BETEFEEAEEZYHER 31 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TREAAEERETDIELEEG2EDFHE - &
FRERFRSBY  -BMETHMELEEBRRER
RBEARRERERAEBZGERERERANSE
AEETHREREZAE -

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

FE A3 R 8 HERR
Interest Lease &E @t
payable liabilities  Borrowings Total
TET TEr TEx TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(HEE20) (Hy=E21)

(note 20) (note 21)
R-B-=#mA-A At 1 April 2023 - 28,391 37,300 65,691
EXAE Exchange adjustment = (163) = (163)
STUHEE New lease entered = 23,967 = 23,967
REALAESYN Early termination of lease
contracts - (395) - (395)
BEHREBRT Modification of lease terms - 18,822 - 18,822
EEARME KK Finance cost recognised 2,919 1,497 = 4,416
MERERE Financing cash flows (2,919) (29,246) 13,425 (18,740)
)}/\\_ﬁ_fﬁ:ﬁ:ﬂ'—lﬂ& At 31 March 2024 and
“E-MEMA—A 1 April 2024 - 42,873 50,725 93,598
EXAE Exchange adjustment = (66) = (66)
SIHHEE New lease entered - 10,544 - 10,544
REALAESYN Early termination of lease
contracts - (3,094) - (3,094)
CHEE=ER Modification of lease terms = 8,968 = 8,968
EERABERA Finance cost recognised 3,428 2,269 = 5,697
MERERE Financing cash flows (3,428) (29,729) 16,253 (16,904)
R-ZZ-HEF=A=1-H At 31 March 2025 - 31,765 66,978 98,743
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32 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024 are set out below, the class of

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated:

ERAIRARE
R/ ER
B BXeHE AREEERE
RBELY Particulars of issued and Attributable
AGES Place of incorporation  fully paid-up share/ equity interest to TEEHR
Name of company and operation registered capital the Group Principal activity
“E-HE Z—E-QNE
2025 2024
Moiselle (BVI) Limited ABERRES 2,000k B REEI X 100% 100%  REER
British Virgin Islands 2,000 shares of US§1 each Investment holding
EEARAT o 500,0008% K 1 100% 100%  BERHRHRES
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
FHBERBERAA g2 ELERZE 100% 100%  WRRBRAXKE
Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong 200,000 % 12 Sourcing of materials and
EER property holding
1,800,001 & 43
Deferred non-voting
200,000 shares
Ordinary 1,800,001 shares
WEREARRAT S 10,0008 B 2 100% 100%  W¥kE
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
7 (BR)BRAT g2 1,000,0008% B 3 100% 100%  BEEHRHRES
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. b 500,0008 8 REE 100% 100%  BEHRHRELS
1M Retail of fashion apparel
Singapore 500,000 shares of SG$1 and accessories
each
ZEARAR ABERREE IRABIXR 100% 100%  FERERHRES
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
ERREARLT g2 500,000% K 1 100% 100%  BERHBHRES
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
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32 AATTEMEDT 2 (F) 32 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
BRTRAR
&/
BRI BRzEfR KEBESLRE
RBEHE Particulars of issued and Attributable
INGES Place of incorporation  fully paid-up share/ equity interest to TEEK
Name of company and operation registered capital the Group Principal activity
“E-HE ZECZQRE
2025 2024
REERBRAF BB 500,0008% B 17 100% 100%  EERMBHREL
Perfect National International Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
RK Moiselle Fashions Limited i 1,4298 R 7 70% 70% MBS RO R BN
Hong Kong 1,429 shares Wholesale of fashion
apparel and accessories
BEREFRAH g 1,000/ & 3 100% 100%  MEHEE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
ERREERAA ) J3 & A25,0008M T 100% 100%  ZEREHRSRELS
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau Registered capital Retail of fashion apparel
MOP25,000 and accessories
RNEXBETEBRAT" HE R AR#2,000,0007 100% 100%  BERHBEMRGRES
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail Limited Mainland China RMB2,000,000 Retail and wholesale of
Company* fashion apparel and
accessories
HERE (R BRAR PEIR 8,400,000% T 100% 100%  BEHK
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* ~ Mainland China HK$8,400,000 Manufacturing of garments
RYIT G R E R R BRA T PERL AE#10,0007 100% 100%  M¥EHEF
Shenzhen QianHai Xiaofeng Fashion Design Mainland China RMB10,000 Property holding
Co., Ltd.*
* ZELARRBHBEDRAIEMZMERERE - *  These are foreign investment enterprises registered under the
laws of the PRC.
RMEEE  MEMBARSBITEMEHEES - None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of both years.
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
—EBE-HE —EME
2025 2024
THET FTEx
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
REBARZRE Investments in a subsidiary 61,671 61,671
JE LT B /BB A B) 5k 1B Amount due from a subsidiary 192,000 198,000
253,671 259,671
MEEE Current assets
HL At & UL 3K Other receivables 133 135
FE Us B B A B FRIE Amount due from a subsidiary 1,709 2,204
RITHEBRRERS Bank balances and cash 47 51
1,889 2,390
RBEE Current liability
H A K Other payables 1,037 1,066
RBEEZRE Net current assets 852 1,324
EEFE Net assets 254,523 260,995
BEXRRFE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 2,880 2,880
& Reserves 251,643 258,115
iR 3R %5 A HE Total equity 254,523 260,995
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-RAF=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

33 RATZHBMRRE (&) 33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

RARRB2EE : Movement in the Company’s reserves:

BH#EE ESEK  REER BiEE
Share Contributed Retained Total
premium surplus profits reserves
TET TR TET TEL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(MEaEG)  (BYREGD)

(note (i) (note (ii))

RZE-_=FWA—H At 1 April 2023 65,327 61,572 137,251 264,150
FRABEREZEMAXERE Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - - (6,035) (6,035)
R-ZE-MF=A=+—HR At 31 March 2024 and
“E-_MEMA—H 1 April 2024 65,327 61,572 131,216 258,115
ERBERZEMXEE Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - - (6,472) (6,472)

R-ZE-REF=A=+—H At 31 March 2025 65,327 61,572 124,744 251,643

Hiat - Notes:

() REAEFELRE ROZERTIIKRTFAAR (i) In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
ZRR HEEERESIRRE B BE  KATEN Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
BRINRIPBEEAEERBRPELEZER shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
BRAD R E TS Al AT R ALRR D 2 HRAEH DK following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be

distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

(i) BENBRAKERRBER-_ZZE-_F—A=-THBEN (i)  The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
ZEBEAMREZHBLARER 2EHEERE then combined net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
EARQRAREERSREZERTROZEEZE over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued
o BERBHZAZERGGEEMER - in exchange thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002. The application of
contributed surplus is the same as the share premium.
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Address

=8

A

RIGEBE145%

ERE

it T D%

Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road
North Point

Hong Kong

=58

NLEE

AAE

BEMET81-875%

SBIXERE

8ARBE

Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,
Island Industrial Building,
Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street
Tai Kok Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

BRI

EHE

T B I R EE B

SHERES
A1#84101BER4102E

Units 4101B & 4102 on 41st Floor,
Excellence Times Plaza

Yitian Road and Fuhua Road
Futian District

Shenzhen, the PRC
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Properties held for Investment

RERR FHHA

Existing use Lease term

5 BHEE

Shop Short lease

At RHEE
Warehouse Medium-term lease
WAE FHEE

Office Medium-term lease
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Properties held for Investment

it 31k
Address

(d) HFERYIMAZEAFIXE
REREF1.6BE3E3CKIDE
Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,
Tianfa Building, F1.6
Tian’an Chegongmiao
Industrial Zone,
Shenzhen, the PRC

@ HFERITRZEAFIXBRAZLE

REAR

Existing use

it

ma

Office

H2.8E5#5A5 » 5A6 * 5A7R5A8F » 61 £6A5 » 6A6

6A7R6ABZE AR 74E7A9 ~ 7A10 ~ 7ATT »
7A12 » 7A13R7A14E

Flats 5A5, 5A6, 5A7 and 5A8 on 5th Floor,
Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor
and Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and
7A14 on 7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2.8,
Tian’an Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC

(f) AR BRI L &
AEEEEHER LM (FEEEHRL)
16/B16H &
Unit 16H on 16th Floor,

BE

Quarter

£
e

Qianhai Kerry Commercial Centre Phase 2 (Qianhai Kerry Centre),

Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC

RZBE-HAF=A=1+—-0 BEREYE-EBELS
37,000F F R o

RZZE-RF=F=+—H0 BFEATHREEY @A
HE# 544,000 5 R o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B B 4 M A R 2 7

Apartment

I

Lease term

A

Medium-term lease

RS

Medium-term lease

hHIEE

Medium-term lease

Properties held for investment occupied approximately 37,000

square feet in area at 31 March 2025.

Land and buildings held for own use occupied approximately
44,000 square feet in area at 31 March 2025.

Annual Report 2025 4 4¢ #t



LT AAREESE-_E-_AF="A=T—HLAREFES
FEHREBUREEREBZME -

A5 1 S 25 1k 2

Group Financial Summary

The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2025.
E 3 RESULTS
BE=ZA=+t—HLFE
Year ended 31 March
—ECRE —E-_NE —E_-= —E_— —E-—F
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
TET THER FTHET THERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Iy &= Revenue 102,722 137,311 127,946 138,526 127,283
ReEBE Loss from operations (45,811) (29,286) (24,980) (44,469) (29,078)
& R A Finance costs (5,697) (4,416) (2,117) (2,510) (4,838)
RENEZMEE Net valuation (losses) gains on
(EBE) a3 investment properties (8,352) (16,136) (21,768) 5,984 14,319
BRELAIE B Loss before taxation (59,860) (49,838) (48,865) (40,995) (19,597)
T8 Income tax 3,307 1,728 5,964 48 (3,608)
FRER Loss for the year (56,553) (48,110) (42,901) (40,947) (23,205)
THALER: Attributable to:
RARFEEA Owners of
the company (56,546) (48,100) (42,857) (40,718) (22,751)
FERES Non-controlling interests 7) (10) (44) (229) (454)
FRER Loss for the year (56,553) (48,110) (42,901) (40,947) (23,205)
BRER Loss per Share
=K Basic HK$(0.20)8 7T HK$(0.17)%B 7 HK$(0.15)E 7t HK$(0.14)Ex HK$(0.08)E T
BRERE Dividends per share - - -
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Group Financial Summary

LEEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=+—-H
At 31 March
—ECRE —E-_NFE —ZT-= =2 —E-—F
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
TER TERT THET TET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
M- BERRE Property, plant and equipment
MR REM* and investment properties 431,397 480,525 558,533 602,165 677,136
HiEE Other assets 27,651 36,814 18,338 39,125 39,098
EEFMSHEE Deferred tax assets 1,237 323 312 243 351
REBEERE Net current liabilities (66,931) (24,456) (18,659) (8,338) (57,042)
EELBERTBER Total assets less current
liabilities 393,354 493,206 558,524 633,195 659,543
¥ RBEE Non-current liabilities (75,882) (94,271) (97,208)  (118,382)  (127,588)
BEEFHE NET ASSETS 317,472 398,935 461,316 514,813 531,955
iR 2 Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880
fitt6 Reserves 315,856 397,312 459,683 513,136 530,049
AR R IRRENS Total equity attributable
BRREER to equity shareholder of
the company 318,736 400,192 462,563 516,016 532,929
FEE R E S Non-controlling interests (1,264) (1,257) (1,247) (1,203) (974)
HRRER TOTAL EQUITY 317,472 398,935 461,316 514,813 531,955
BREEFE Net assets per share HK$1.108 T  HK$1.3987  HK$1.60/7T HKS1.79% 7T HKS1.858 T
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